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OFFICE OF
INSPECTOR GENERAL

Re: Freedom of Information Act Request (HQ-FOI-1576-10)

This letter responds to your Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request dated July 2, 2010,
seeking disclosure of the closing memo and final report for seventeen Environmental Protection
Agency Office of Inspector General investigations.

Documents responsive to your request are enclosed. In some instances, the Quarterly Status
Report also served as the Closing Status Report for an investigation. Where applicable, these
Quarterly Status Reports have been substituted for the requested closing memo.

Some redactions of information have been made to the documents pursuant to the FOIA, 5
U.S.C. § 552, Sections (b)(4), (b)(5), (b)(6), (b)(7)(c), and (b)(7)(e). Exemption (b)(4) protects
trade secrets and commercial or financial information obtained from a person that is privileged or
confidential. In some cases, company names have been removed pursuant to Exemption (b)(4).
Exemption (b)(5) exempts from disclosure inter-agency or intra-agency memoranda or letters
which would not be available by law to a party other than an agency in litigation with the
agency. This exemption generally allows agencies to exempt those documents that are
privileged in the context of civil discovery. In some cases documents have been withheld under
the attorney work-product privilege pursuant to Exemption (b)(5). The names of law
enforcement personnel and personal identifying information have been withheld have been
withheld pursuant to Exemption (b)(6). Exemption (b)(7)(c) provides protection for personal
information in law enforcement records the disclosure of which could reasonably be expected to
constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy. The names of law enforcement
personnel and personal identifying information have been withheld pursuant to Exemption
(b)(7)(c). Exemption (b)(7)(e) allows agencies to protect from disclosure all law enforcement
information that would disclose techniques and procedures for law enforcement investigations or
prosecutions or which would disclose guidelines for law enforcement investigation or
prosecutions if such disclosure could reasonably be expected to risk circumvention of the law.
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For your information, Congress excluded three discrete categories of law enforcement and
national security records from the requirements of the FOIA. See 5 U.S.C. § 552(c) (2006 &
Supp. IV 2010). This response is limited to those records that are subject to the requirements of
the FOIA. This is a standard notification that is given to all our requesters and should not be
taken as an indication that excluded records do, or do not, exist.

If you consider this to be a partial denial, you may appeal to the Counsel to the Inspector
General, Office of Counsel, Office of Inspector General, 1200 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, Mail
Code (2411T), Washington, D.C. 20460, Fax (202) 566-0870, e-mail oigfoia@epa.gov. The
appeal must be made in writing and must be submitted no later than 30 calendar days from the
date of this letter. The appeal letter should include the FOI number listed above. If possible the
appeal letter and its envelope should be marked “Freedom of Information Act Appeal.”

If you have any questions concerning this matter, you may contact Shushona Hyson, Freedom of
Information Officer at (202) 566-0869.

Sincerely,
Helen A. Mollick
Senior Associate Counsel

Office of Counsel

Enclosures
cc: FOIA Office



OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL
OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS

CLOSING STATUS REPORT
CASE NUMBER: 03-2015 DATE: March 23, 2007
ASSN NUMBER: 2003-1472 _ b [0 OFFICE: Northeastern - Washington
CASE TITLE: | = AGENT: L, 7C

CASE CAT: '"Employéei Integnty
CASE TYPE: Stolen Property

ALLEGATIONS: This case was opened on August 14, 2003, based on an e-mail complaint ,b 7@
received from _ , Human Organizational Services
Center, Office of Superfund Remediation apd Technology Innovation (OSRTI), Office of Solid -
Waste and Emergency Response (OSWERﬁon July 9, 2003. The complainant allegec l:)(o ( 7C/
illegally authorized payment of invoices to purchase
ORACLE Software/Licenses against an Intéragency Agreement (IAG) # DW-47-93789101-9, 7
between EPA and the General Services Administration (GSA). The draft notes of b@ C
Analytical Operations ang Data Quality Center (AOC) Office of |
Emergency and Remedial Response (OERR), OSWEéwere attached to the above mentioned e7
_mail com laint.” as also the, for this IAG. On June 12, 2002, :
‘j advised that” nappropriately used the TAG funds to purchase a laptop computer ‘
This lapfop computer was riot required for the IAG and was not used by LOCKHEED MARTIN
Contractor, GSA, in performing the requirements of the task outlined in the IAG. Also, the _ é é 7
laptop computer was not listed on LOCKHEED MARTIN's final property inventory sheet. C
was in possession of the laptop computer and software. The potential damage to EPA 1nv01ved -
approximately $17,000. This investigation was within the EPA OIG's jurisdiction because béﬁ 7C_
was an EPA employee and EPA funds were misdirected to purchase computer equipment. The
potential violations were 18 U.S.C. 641 (Theft of Property), 18 U.S.C. 1341 (Wire Fraud), 18
U.S.C. 1001 (False Statements), and 18 U.S.C. 287 (False Claims).

APRIL 1, 2007 CLOSING: In April 2004, SHAUN PALMER, Trial Attorney (TA),
Department of Justice (DOJ), Criminal Division (CD), Public Integrity Unit (P[U), Washmgton .
D.C., was assigned to this case. On May 25, 2004, OI received an e-mail from___ ___with an b (0 pias
inventory from LOCKHEED MARTIN of IT equipment which was possessed byl relatwa
to the JAG. On May 26, 2004, Ol received an e-mail from! _ <

. ‘1ndlcat1ngL \never logged any equipment into EPA property that was ordered by m &)(‘? e
relative to the IAG. On May 26, 2004, OI met with,”

OARM[and” .fb(” C

btﬂc, ) , O‘KRM](  stated, per the EPA Certiffed Praject Officer (PO)

BL)

cpatabase ”Jhad been a certified PO since _stated if IT equ1pment JD(.O 76/

‘was authorized under this TAG, it would have been reflected in the statement of work and a dollar
E
This report is the property of the Office of Investigations and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents may not be reproduced wm‘iout
written permission. The reportis FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and its disclosure to unauthorized person is prohibited. Public availability to
be determined under 5 U.S.C. 552.
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Case No. 03-2015 March 23’ 2007

= |
amount would have been written in the equipment field. " _stated based on the statement of j& él s
work, this IAG was paying for IT services and the contracfor stould already have had IT

equipment. On May 26, 2004, Ol reviewed records from the EPA Certified PO Database, whic | '
indicatedL ook refresher training and were certified untili =~ On June 9,h¢3 10 { e
2004, Ol Teceived an e-mail ffom” . bl (’)5 ¢

GSA,\with an attached inventory of all task orders related to the equipment

ordered under this IAG through GSA. The total value of the equipment ordered byL_ "througﬂl b[&’, 7 ¢
GSA was $25,106.49. - T

On August 13, 2004, OI obtained records from the National Archives and Records C_
Administration containing IAG DW-47-937453-01, __,\Nas ther \‘for this IAG. On b (9 ‘ 7

November 18, 2004, OI met with BRENDA MORRI‘-S_, Deputy Chli-ef'for Litigation (DCL), DOJ; — s
CD, PIU, and " . DCL MORRIS directed OI to continue the investigation with the b, K
possibility of prosecution. On November 23, 2004, Ol re-interviewed and 1 b L I
both of whom provided case background information and confirmed the laptopand software . ’& !t Iq, '
rgrdered by'/ ““Yunder the IAG were unaccounted for. On December 9, 2004, Qu oo

. GSAAwas re-interviewed and provided documentation L w“ e
ETlowing‘ ' ’reqxfgsted Oracle software, via the IAG, on April 22, 2002, befordL_ _was taken {3 g,, 7(/
off the IAG as theL,_ ‘ :

On May 10, 2005, DCL MORRIS declined prosecution in this matter in lieu of administrative

action." On May 11, 2005, O] inte({vig:wea'; “Vn a sworn statement,; “hdmitted ~ L i’ Com,
confiscating computer gquigmentv"aad purché?ed without authorization ofi IAG DW-47- b C.«» . e
93789101-9. Further,, admitted doing the same on other IAGs as far back as 1992. On May

20, and 24, of 2005,\:b “Klrrendered hardware and software to': ’and Ol, all of which b(o . 7C.

was provided to the Com’ﬁuter Crimes Directorate (CCD) for forensic anargfsis. On September
20, 2005, CCD concluded forensic analysis of the above mentioned computer equipment. CCD|
reported negative findings. :

On October 28, 2005, OI submitted a Report of Investigation (ROI) to MICHAEL B. COOK,

Director of Superfund Remediation and Technology Innovation, Office of Solid Waste and ‘
Emergency Response, for appropriate administrative action. On November 15,2005,0I
submitted the same ROI to EPA’s Office of Grants and Debarment (OGD) in order 19 initiate |
debarment proceedings against__ On February 27, 2006, OI was informed was & G, :7 C_
transferred to the Office of Environmental Information (OEI). Subsequently, tﬁg ROI was giverﬁ

te . _ OEI, for administrative action. OI| lolo ‘ /¢
contacted on numerous occasions to ensure a timely and prompt resolution in thifs R
matter. On March 16, 2006, stated  vas working diligently to review the ROI ‘Q((’sl) 4
and was seeking counsel from EPA’s Office of Human Resources for the appropriate penalty.

Pursuant to this investigation, on June 21, 2006, :00k administrative action Q 7 @
against by officially reprimanding - via a memorandum. On September 1, 2006, after b
lengthy\d”eli‘t%rations : }Attorney, OGD, concluded that  would not L, T

This report is the property of the Office of Investigations and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents may not be reproduced without
written permission. The report is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and its disclosure to unauthorized person is prohibited. Public availability to
be determined under 5 U.S.C. 552. :
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g g
: v b, 7¢
proceed w1t}_11debarment agamst\/ because, as an EPA employee, debarment would not > ™
prevent( from working on grants and contracts. OI determurd that bQ ‘70/,
' misconduct, and OI took steps b b,/ &
to address this concern in a report generated and issued in March 2007, by the OIG for EPA ?
Based on the aforementioned facts, this case is closed. \

Approved:_/s/_ a Ji qu 7c
Acting Spec1al Agent in Charge '

This report is the property of the Office of Investigations and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents may not be reproduced‘ without
written permission. The report is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and its disclosure to unauthorized person is prohibited. Public avallablllty to
be determined under 5 U.S.C. 552.

Status Report Form







;

OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL

OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS
90-DAY STATUS REPORT
CASE CLOSING
CASE NUMBER: 06-0002 DATE: February 16, 2007
ASSN. NUMBER: 2005-0306 - OFFICE: SIU il
CASE TITLE. AGENT: |
g T CASE CAT.: "Employee Integrity
Lo CASE TYPE: False Statements

ALLEGATIONS: This case was initiated on November 7, 2005, based upon information that , , - -
o Region 6 (R6), Dallas, TX has been /" *

practicing law without a valid license since April 1988. Further, a Confidential Source (CS-

11001) alleged that LAWRENCE STARFIELD, Deputy Regional Administrator, Region 6, o

Dallas, TX, as well as CHARLES SHEEHAN, EPA, Regional Counsel for Region 6 were both - .-

aware of  licensing status and failed to take corrective action. Additionally, P
iob applications for two Regional Counsel positions may have contained fraudulent “~ =

information concerning ~ membership in the Pennsylvania Bar. This matter is within the ¢ !

jurisdiction of the EPA OIG because of possible fraudulent activities by an EPA employee.

Possible violations include 18 USC 1001 (False Statements), and Section 38.122 of the Texas

Penal Code which provides that any person who holids him or herself out as a lawyer with the

intent to obtain economic benefit has committed a third degree felony.

G
S

S~

SYNOPSIS: Investigation has demonstrated that is not an active member of any &+ :
bar. was only licensed in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and has been placed ..t .
on inactive status by the Disciplinary Board of the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania on April 29, = _ |
1988. currently remains inactive due to his failure to pay required annual dues. In May / - . —
1995, was hired as GS-905-11, Attorney-Advisor, Washington, D.C. During the ,
course of time spanning from date of hire through approximately December 2005,

was responsible for providing legal opinions on matters involving contracts, personnel actions,
and equal employment opportunity (EEO) matters to R6 senior management. A review of .3
Official Personnel File disclosed that did not represent - s.an active member ’éfé -
ofanybarin  employment application to the EPA. &{. "

i 4
£ A

The investigation did not develop any information that R6 officials were aware of
inactive status. Investigation has determined that as a result of their own inquiry, R6 officials

removed from any representative matters on November 15, 2005. An interview of z
the Regional Counsel, who is also supervisor, revealed that the unlicensed 4 . < _
allegations surfaced in October 2005. - stated to the Regional Counsel that there was

a bureaucratic mistake on the part of the Pennsylvania Bar Association having to do with
Continuing Legal Examination (CLE) credits.

On November 29, 2005, . was interviewed and stated that  had only recently been [ ERR
made aware of  inactive membership status by ~ supervisor and that  had never received

This report is the property of the Office of Investigations and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents may not be
reproduced without written permission. The report is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and its disclosure to unauthorized person is
prohibited. Public availability to be determined under 5 U.S.C, 552.
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Case No. 06-0002 February 16, 2007

any correspondence from the Pennsylvania Bar Association indicating inactive membership. LT
provided a sworn statement on November 30, 2005, indicating that  had been * E e
paying the PACLE for several years for an out-of-state exemption for CLE credits and for

retaining a bar membership. Information received from the PACLE disclosed that e -
2004 and 2005 applications for membership in the PACLE for were rejected due tc  non- | -
active bar status and  monies refunded. PACLE financial records indicate that the refund * -~~~
checks were never cashed. during a follow-up interview on January 31, 2006, told . .~ - —
investigators that  did not receive the rejected application notifications or the refunded [ A

application fees.

A consent search of office disclosed documents indicating that A{’; e

performed a number of legal activities for EPA as Deputy Regional Counsel and copies of an

EPA 1981 policy stating that EPA Attorneys must be active members of a Bar Association while

employed at EPA. Senior Agency attorneys and ethics officials were interviewed in January

2006, to ascertain the policies governing the GS-905 series, Office of Personnel Management

regulations, and EPA requirements. These interviews confirmed that active membership in a

state bar is a mandatory requirement of Attorney Advisor positions at the EPA. Documentation

from both the EPA and the OPM reinforces the mandated active membership requirement.

On January 20, 2006, filed a Petition for Reinstatement from Inactive to Active ~~ =

Status before the Disciplinary Board of the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania. In the petition, .
indicates that  is not currently the subject of any investigation by any law ble. /C~

enforcement agency and is not the subject of any disciplinary complaint filed with any agency. o

The petition answers provided by .  may be false statements and could be violations of -

Pennsylvania’s Title 18 § 4904 - Unsworn Falsification to Authorities.

In May 2006, a Prosecutive Report of Investigation was given to MARC MCBRIDE, Assistant

United States Attorney, Northern District of Texas, Dallas, TX for prosecutive determination of

Title 18 USC 1001, False Statements and Title 18 USC 1341 (Mail Fraud). On May 8, 2006, the . .

federal prosecution of this subject was declined as the matter L
Additionally, on April 21, 2006, the matter was referred to the Dallas county

prosecutor for violating Section 38.122 of the Texas Penal Code which provides that any person

who holds him or herself out as a lawyer with the intent to obtain economic benefit has

committed a third degree felony. Assistant District Attorney, BEN STOOL, recommended that

the Office of Investigations forward the Report of Investigation (ROI) to the Agency for

administrative action before he considers prosecution. The case was referred on June 30, 2006,

to Agency Officials for consideration of administrative action and, per request, to the

Pennsylvania Disciplinary Board of the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania.

FEBRUARY 16, 2007 CLOSING: On December 1, 2006 accepted a position as a é‘” i

GS-9 Management Analyst, a voluntary downgrade fronr GS-15. posmon z,, ;‘_ —
remains employed at Region 6, Dallas, Texas. The EPA has advised that S

cannot be returned to the position. On July 6, 2006, the EPA implemented an & e, Sl

PA Attorney’s Certification of Active Bar Membership” memorandum requring EPA The
Pennsylvania Disciplinary Board of the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania reports that

This report is the property of the Office of Investigations and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents may not be
reproduced without written permission. The report is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and its disclosure to unauthorized person is
prohibited. Public availability to be determined under 5 U.S.C. 552.

Status Report Form




a?

Case No. 06-0002 February 16, 2007

i

license to practice law has been suspended for a year and a day and that ~ must reapply to the £
Board and appear before the Bar’s Ethics Committee before  application back into the Bar can b

be considered. On February 6, 2006, ADA Stool informed the OIG that  will not prosecute the e T

matter given that the Agency did not terminate .and that  is no longer practicing law /.
in the state of Texas. No further information has been developed to warrant any additional
investigative steps and this case is closed.

Approved: /s/ Michael Loughnane
Director, Special Operations Directorate

This report is the property of the Office of Investigations and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents may not be
reproduced without written permission. The report is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and its disclosure to unauthorized person is
prohibited. Public availability to be determined under 5 U.S.C. 552.
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——
YNOPSIS: On  September 13, 2006, in th ___ \during a meeting attended by
\5{0 i SA\_ _land Assistant Inspector General for Investlgatlons (AIGD) STEPHEN

[Efﬁce of Inspector General (OIG), Office of Investigations (OI)

OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL
OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS

90-DAY STATUS REPORT

CASE NUMBER:  06-0010

ASSN. NUMBER:  2006-1693 - ub opr Sopember 24,2007
CASE TITLE: EPAEMPLOYEE[ ¢ jor Lo e

CASE CAT.: “Employee Infegrity
CASE TYPE: False Statements

ALLEGATIONS: This case was initiated on September

22, 2006, based upon information received from|_ \ ‘» \"o ¢ile

: '7 ,n
e

!

L3

t

ay have back-dated cerfain OIG-OI work products to indicate tmeen
prepared in accordance with Ol policy of documenting interviews no later than 7 days after the

interview took place. E?\C learned that@ _)prepared multiple interviews after this bl . 7C
time frame, but made it appear as if they had been produced within the 7 day time period. This

matter is within the jurisdiction of the EPA OIG because of possible fraudulent activities by an

EPA employee. Possible violations include 18 USC 1001( False Statements) and 5 C.F.R. Part

2635. 701-Standards of Conduct for Employees of the Executive Branch, Misuse of Position

hé, 4

bl L,NESBIT SA ‘ ’Ellegedly admitted that_ f\back—dated five investigative documents é‘ 7 ‘..-

ble 1

associated with an ongoing ERC 1nvest1gat10n to which “as _assigned. According to SAC"

_and AIGI NESBITT, at that tlme\:A,_ \mdlcated _created the investigative oW,
Tnterviews and back-dated them to reflect that they had been | prepared at an earlier point in time. ¢
At the conclusion of the meetmg,EA_ was directed to provide various cgmputer media; & (a
including diskettes, \’ofﬁce computer and an EPA computer maintained_ _ residence. These AG, 7 c
items were subsequently forwarded to the Special Operations Directorate Computer Crime
Laboratory in Washington, D.C., for analysis to determine what forensic information can be
obtained—this activity is ongoing. The alleged back-dated documents were secured as evidence.
Examination of @XM \computer s indicated that the five documents were created on a b(p RS
computer that had date and time settings for August 2000. This made it appear as if all the .
documents had been created on August 2, 2000. Examination of email accounts of SA|__ —] k)(f 7\
reviewing officials identified when the suspect documents were submitted for supervisory |
review. In the initial findings, the forensic analysis d erml_qed that certain media containing the o
five suspect documents had not be%l_[f ,_pwd by Aﬁ _after being directed on September bé
_13,2006. An attempt to interview was made on November 6, 2006, however, g‘ b<" (—)

eclined to be interviewed W1thout the presence oi 1 attorney.

This report is the property of the Office of Investigations and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents may not be |
reproduced without written permission. The report is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and its disclosure to unauthorized person is
prohibited. Public availability to be determined under 5 U.S.C. 552,
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in__ office that had not been

Case No. 06-0010 September 24, 2007

0 ~
On November 21, 2006, w1th attorney present @\’ was interviewed. (:S_:} was Hb T

advised that this matter had b n declined criminal px;osecutfon by the United States " Attorney,
stated thaly inever back-dated the fivg investigative b, 7C
% ptember 13, 2006, provided ARSI

tated that ubsequently discovered more diskettes oo,
&d over and “had faken these diskettes tor; residence. 'SA 205«-5 ’f”t‘,
wbvas requested to provide these dlskettes to tl&tf;estlgators and on December 4, 2006, bb, 7¢

documents and that when requested by
computer diskettes. However, %\“

LSA prov1ded 21 more.diskettes for analysis. {SA was interviewed again on b(f, ’}C,,

December 27, 2006, with attorney present, and state thaf there was another diskette, which bl &
m\had not yet provided, but that _gave this diskette to another OIG employee for “safe- i, s

Keeping.” SA subsequently | provided the contact information for this individual, who was bis, (,

contacted, and this Jiskette taken into evidence. Forensic analysis of this diskette determined

this to be the missing medja and that the diskette contained the five suspect documents. Upon
identifying that SA wrthheld evidence relevant to this investigation, this matter was b(, ¢
presented to the Unlted States Attorney’s Office, District of Columbia, for prosecutrve
determination. Federal criminal prosecution of this matter was declined. SA _ was lo& ¢
interviewgd again on E ebruary 8, 2007, and provided a sworn statement on F ebruary 15, 2007.

SA stated in' nterv1ew that dld not recall making statements to the effect thaj "k (p e
had ¢ back- “dated 1nterv1ews to~ Tand NESBI'L Inboth” interview and sworn statement i, 7o
SA™ identified that o viewed the date” starts a, docufnent as it’s “prepared date” and . ¢, e
that Tf. “Hinishes the document .3t some latef point, 'would not change the initial prepared £ ¢, -7,
date. SAT Also stated in )sworn statement that fhe five documents which” had dated | ST
as being prepared on July 12 and’J July 13, 2006, were not finalized until approx1maf' oly the C
second week of August 2006. SA’ ‘stated in \1nterv1ew that' _was aware of the bw A -
diskette that contained the five suSpect documentsﬂand that “hrd’ th1s drskette by providing it ¢ - i

L.
to another OIG employee. SA __ stated in__sworn statément that ‘did not believe that onls Tte
this diskette was " diskette becalse recalled that upon reviewing it, all the files did not j; e e
contain the same creation date—August 2; 2000. Forensic analysis of this diskette identified that T
all the files did, in fact, have the same creation date—August 2, 2000, and modification dates
ranging from August 15 through August 27, 2006. On April 5, 2007, the Special Operations

Division issued the forensic report documenting their analysis.

JULY 1,2007 UPDATE: On April 24, 2007, A Report of Investigation was issued to

On June 12, 2007, aNotice of Proposed Removal 3
memorandum was srgned b) 4and presented to S/L__ -__ On September 19, 2007, _ | J b d,l ]
was removed from Federal service. This investigation is Closed.

* Approved: /s/ Andrew F. McLaughlin l,
Acting Director, Special Operations Division

This report is the property of the Office of Investigations and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents may not be !
reproduced without written permission. The report is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and its disclosure to unauthorized person is
prohibited. Public availability to be determined under 5 U.S.C. 552,
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OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL
OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS

CLOSING STATUS REPORT
CASE NUMBER: 06-2014 DATE: April 6, 2007
ASSN. NUMBER:r2,006-1 518 OFFICE: r1}1ortheastern—Washingt‘on

bl JocaseTiTLE: ] AGENT: ., bb, &
] o CASE CAT.: Employee Integrity
Washington, DC CASE TYPE: Conflict of Interest

ALLEGATIONS: On July 18, 2006, a Preliminary Inquiry (PI) was opened based upon OIG
Hotline Complaint Number 6-152, from JEANETTE BROWN, Director, Office of Small and
Disadvantaged Business Utilization (OSDBU), Office of the Administrator (OA), Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA), Washington, D.C. In her complaint, BROWN alleged a possible
violation of the Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR), the Procurement Integrity Act (PL&), and
- ethics regulations t ~ b . T
According to the corr‘ff»laint,r ] Ton a Firm Fixed Price b6 ,7C)
Contract, #EP-W-04-056, between OSDBU and CORPORATE SYSTEMS RESOURCES, INC.
(CSR), Greenbelt, MD. Under the terms of the contract, CSR was to run the OSDBU Outreach
Center. The contract was awarded on September 20, 2005, had a potential maximum value of
$1,021,754, a current value of $518,796, and a maximum expiration date of September 19, 2008.
BROWN advised the ethics matter first came to OSDBU’s attention when former EPA Ethics
Official KEN WERNICK received a letter from the law firm of WILLIAMS & CONNOLLY -
LLP, Washington, D.C. 20005, alleging riolated ethics regulations by hiring a former
. EPA contractor. BROWN further advised that on November 22, 2005, CSR informed OSDBU
Hp jc,that - provided CSR with proprietary information about another contractor, allowed
' CSRTo access mformation supplied by another contractor, and directed CSR to review and
“tweak” this information.

i | -

. : - N . b e
The PI was opened to determine what role, if any, . had in the hiring of the former =
contractor; the circgmstances regarding the conduct of the contract’s administration; and whether, =
kb Ty¢_and to what extent, iolated FAR regulations, PIA regulations, or any ethics

regulations. The inVestigatioanas within EPA OIG’s jurisdiction because it involved an EPA
employee and the integrity of the EPA ethics and procurement programs.

This report is the property of the Office of Investigations and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents may not be
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Case No. 06-2014 April 6, 2007

APRIL 6, 2007 _CLOSING: On November 1, 2006, this PI was reassigned to SA. b(" ¢ RS
_ ' On November 3, 2006, a Request for Extension of PI was submitted to the Assistant
Inspector General for Investigations, who subsequently approved the extension.

OI confirmed OSDBU hired a former{_ o - o ) bét 7 c
- , T ol determine.dt was the . o "at '0 L ( R
prior to w)EPA employment, and managed the contract befween CSR and OSDBU. Ol /%é , 2 c
further determined[_ _jresigned from EPA ) upon learning OSDBU was 40 ¢ ¢
going to issue a Discharge Duringrl?robatior;_\ary Period letter, that was to be effective the same
date. Ol also determined that in 2001, for another EPA 6@ | L

contractor, SYSTEMS SUPPORT ALTERNATWES, INCORPORATED (SSA), Alexandria, VA. 1
While employed at SSA, }lleged‘lxpspcnt an enormous amount Qf time in closed door b é{o‘ L’ y

meetings with' - bn the SSA contract. s the subject in OI Case c,
No..02-2005, which involves allegations of contract administratior‘f'fmproprieties by__ 1 b Q . 7

Ol interviewed CASSANDRA FREEMAN, Deputy Director, QSDBU, AO, EPA, who authored
the Discharge During Probatiq;;lary Period letter and accepted ,resignation letter. be \‘) <

FREEMAN statedgr: o 'termination was based on L_ b(p ‘—)C_—
— ~
intery - b, 7¢
On November 6, 2006, OI 1nter\_/.16wed BROWN who stated l;hat she was, o (
and thatR had no role in the hiring of | BROWN stafed! bé. ¢
o . oy oyl . ~— e e [ _)CL
_Grant Spec1allsﬂ OSDBU, hired _ . _BROWN confirmed that FREEMAN b,
H\p 7Q/terminat§.d.__ —\ brx
¥ . BROWN

bb e

conﬁrmedThat[ jwas not involved with CSR’s contract during = mployment at EPA. bl ‘_77_( :
BROWN stated her allegation that,_ jprovided proprietary information to CSR, was ‘o(o . lc
based on the fact that during contract progress review meetings between OSDBU and CSR, CSR
consistently seemed to have prior knowledge of, and prepared responses to, contract performance

problems OSDBU had with CSR. It was BROWN’s opinion that . gave CSR a “heads b(m?(
up,” thereby allowing the company “time to prepare their responses.’ﬂBROWN conceded, C
however, that eventually OSDBU would have discussed the contract performance problems with Lé }(
CSR. BROWN further stated that on one occasion, GLENDA TAYLOR, President and CEO of )
CSR, expressed knowledge of tensions between OSDBU and other contract bidders. BROWN
stated it is her belief that provided this information to TAYLOR. BROWN stated that {{,, ¢
on November 22, 2005, CSR informed her that gave CSR a statement of work and a

survey submitted to EPA by ACTIONET, INC. (ACTIONET), Fairfax, VA. BROWN advised that $ot 1€
the survey was prepared by ACTIONET as part of an EPA contract to test CSR’s work. BROWN

stated did not receive authorization to provide this information to CSR. BROWN e ¢

%
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advised she exercised OSBDU’s option to cancel CSR’s contract after only two years, due to

CSR’s b5
Ol reviewed EPA Contract Number EP-W-04-056 and determined the contract began on . b A
~ September 20, 2005, befofe the November 22, 2005 conversation between CSR and__ o7 ({/
bl " | ¢ during which| allegcdly disclosed what BROWN described as “proprietary
! information.” Ol intervigwed Contract Specialist, HPOD, OAM, b b' 76

b\o \V) (‘/OARI\{L EPYAl\{ho conﬁrmecﬁhe contract was active from September 20, 2005 to September 19,
b‘p I (‘}006. = B tated OSBDU properly exercised its option not to continue the contract after
v Option Period I, which was the time period September 20, 2005 to September 19, 2006.

: e . A ¢
: _Ol interviewed 7 ~ Contract Specialist, HPOD, OAM, OARM, EPA}Who stated (0.
b\o T)(, was Q\le Team Leader responsible for oversight and guidance of contract EP-W-04-056. ‘
bl \")d:— __con rmed that CSR’S contract was terrn':inated - . w J bb ‘7C’)b
stated&was‘\ recollection that BROWN hired ™ L b(‘> 17C'
Ol also interviewedr , Contract Specialist, HPOD, OAM, OARM, EP&who 640' ?.C’
further confirmed that CSR’s contract was terminated A ; - o= ) /0‘9 . / Cj
b[jj ¢ that as “bversaw the administration of the CSR contract with O BDU, including oy
' daily contract work, pEi"d invoices to CSR, and CSR staff. ~ Tstated as not aware of b b ;KL
any allegations or evidence that 'received bribes, illegal gratuities, or any personal [y(_, e

: . . . 2
gain fromr /relatlonshlp with CSR. |5 {, hyled
~

Ol interviewed - Srants Specialist, OSBDU, AO, EPAY_  Istated Rb e
FREEMAN was the supervisor who hired, supervised, and terminated T bl X
_ as fn'erﬁly and outgoing ang that this might have resulted in questions about

Timf)—artiality. ‘/\stated oy ad no reason to believe that _ kbl \ 7@
teceived any Tinancial benelits or gratuities from or througt_ _association with CSR. ‘O [; e

Ol interviewed JUSTINA FUGH, Supervisory Attorney Advisor, OA, Office of Executive

Services, EPA, Washington, D.C., who confirmed that EPA’s Office of General Counsel

concluded the hiring o. h 4{was not a conflict of interest. FUGH stated that conflict of b(o (—:) C

interest and poSt—emploLy_fnent coficerns, do not apply in the reverse. Furthermore, FUGH stated, _

there were no impartiality problems regarding ,because s not involved with I;, b, _7C_ )

CSR’s contract during nployment at EPA. - - L b7
-

Ol interviewed GLENDA TAYLOR, President, CSR who statedE ‘never socialized blo ‘ 76*

with her or members of her office; never received any compensation from C§R; and never bb :7 C-
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received any financial consideration, sugh as gratuitigs, from CSR. TAYLOR further stated that b(é, e
she never received any information from that wasn’t also provided to CSR by b(g Y G
BROWN and OSDBU. -~ -

Ol reviewed FAR § 3.104-5 which addresses disclosure protection; marking of contractor bid or
proposal information; and source selection information. Section 104-5 states that no person or
other entity may disclose contractor bid or proposal information or source selection information to
any person other than a person authorized in accordance with applicable agency regulations or
procedures, by the head of the agency or designee, or the contracting officer, to receive such
information. OI determined through interviews condu{gted of ang‘ doc\;nmentatiou\obtained from ’]C/
OSBDU supervisors and EPA employees, that neither ~ 7~ played any role ble \
in procuring bid or proposal information for CSR’s contract with OSBDU. OI further determined
that information characterized as “proprietary” in the complaint, was nof proprietary, but rather
routine information that was released to CSR prematurely by | b\p \"\Q,

-

Olreviewed FAR § 3.104-7 which addresses conflict of interest and post-employment concerns
when a government employee terminates his federal employment to work for a company
providing goods or services to the Federal government. FAR § 3.104.7 does not say that there is a
conflict of interest when an employee of a company providing goods or services accepts Federal

employment, asL :{did. by 1

Ol reviewed Title 41, Chapter 7, United States Code (U.S.C) Section 423 (a) (the PIA), which

addresses restrictions on disclosing and obtaining contractor bid or proposal information or source

selection information. U.S.C. § 423 (a) prohibits U.S. government officials from knowingly

disclosing contractor bid or proposal information or source selection information before the award

of a Federal agency procurement contract to which the information relates. Documentation and C

statements from OSBDU supervisors BROWN and FREEMAN; and EPA employees bQ’( 7
irevealed that neither’™ ™™~ : played any

role procuring bid or proposal information for CSR’s conffact EP-W-04-056 with OSBDU. OI

also reviewed § 423 (b) which states that a person shall not, other than as provided by law,

knowingly obtain contractor bid or proposal information or source selection information before ~

the award of a Federal agency procurement contract to which the information relates. ThisPI =~ ¢ |

failed to reveal any information that eithelg _ obtained or solicited any 7 C

contractor bid information related to CSR’s contract EP-W-04-056"With OSBDU.

Section 3.104-7, § 423 © and (d) addresse< conflict of interest and post-employment concerns C

when a government employee terminates{ \federal employment to work for a company (

providing goods or services to the Federal government. There is no conflict of interest when an

!
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employee of a company providing goods or services accepts Federal employment, asr{; Jdid. é)é,
2C

Ol reviewed EPA’s Code of Ethics which discusses many broad areas requiring employees to

maintain their integrity when receiving confidential information; to maintain separate financial

interests; to avoid the appearance or reality of illegal activity; and to maintain high ethical

standards. The EPA ethics website references the U.S. Office of Government Ethics, August 9,

2006, memorandum to Designated Agency Ethics Officials, whose subject is Ethics and Working

with Contractors — Questions and Answers. Ol reviewed this memorandum and determined that

one of the areas covered is federal employees’ relationshipg with their former private emplolzers.

OI determined there was no conflict regarding| . _lemployment with EPA, because ’\ ,bﬂ;, lC

had no continuing financial interest in CSR, in compliance with Title 5 of the Code of Federal ~

Regulations, Section 2635.502 (5 C.F.R.§ 2635.502). 5 C.F.R.§ 2635.5025 requires recusal from

work for one to two years with any contract or other particular matter of the former employer.

[nvestigation revealed' _}iid not work on the CSR contract with OSBDU and~ b (p 17 C/

impartiality was determined by BROWN and applicable EPA Ethics officials. -

Ols interview_]of BROWN revealed that she never verbally counseled or provided written counsel

e to about any issues raised in the complaint, such as jcloseness to close blo C.
b \'") (_ to ‘CSR, priot/t(') departure to another EPA office. "BROWN exétcised OSBDU’s N
~ option to cancel the CSR conffract after one year, short of the four year total, due to CSR's _ bes
b This investigation found no evidence to support the allegations that ,r* e [a &, ¢
OSBDU viglated applicable sections of the FAR, PIA or ethics regulations by hin'ﬁé a former_ C
contractor, |__ :] EPA’s Office of General Counsel determined the hiring of,,‘__ Jwas kb, 7
not an issue because “Wwas an EPA contract employee, and post-employment concerns b la, 7C
do not apply in the ré&Verse. Thi'é‘invgsg\igation failed to reveal any evidence that _hada Io, 7(:,
continuing financial tie to CSR after,_w became an EPA employee. Ol determined there were no .1
impartiality problems witt _ becausq__ 'was not involved with CSR's contract with EPAbb‘ 2C
blij)vhi]e -\was an EPA empfgyee. The investigatx'on determined that information characterized as
“propﬁ'&ary’ ” in the complaint, was not proprietary, but rather routine information, that was o
eleased to CSR prematurely by There was no allegation or evidence that bl '7
f;le/\ C,\~ jreceived bribes, illegal gratuitiég or any personal gain from CSR. The allegationsin -
‘ this matter were unsubstantiated. No further investigation is warranted. Thus, this case is x

closed.

o
Approved:__/s/ J La(( ' 7C
Actir'@ Special Agent in Charge
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OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS

CLOSING STATUS REPORT

CASE NUMBER:  06-16002 DATE: March 28, 2007
ASSN.NUMBER: 2006-0769 OFFICE: Central-Cingjnnati
CASE TITLE: . "\ AGENT: bl 1@

Ll

»aenterville, OH \’\U” CASE CAT: 'Employee Integrity
CASE TYPE: Conflict of Interest

ALLEGATIONS: This investigation was initiated on February 6, 2006, based upon a Statement
of Facts (SOF) which had been provided to ) EPA
_Office of Gengral Counsel (OGC), which outlined the actions of ’ [N\

b\o v _relative to EPA contractor PEGASUS TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC.
N ¢ (PEG@/SUS), Cincinnati, OH. The SOF consisted of a chronology of events which occurred
BO»\O during ‘}Hrect involvement with PEGASUS as a contracting official with the
\

EPA Cincinnati Procufément Operations Division (CPOD), and following \1retirement from b\o n ¢
EPA during January, 2006. The contract awarded to PEGASUS (EP-C-05-056) is administered

by the CPOD, a component of the Office of Acquisition Management (OAM) in Norwood, OH,

The contract award occurred during September, 2005. The SOF indicated that: - 10\0 \J] ¢
actively and directly participated in the evaluation phase of the subject contract, during the pé—r'iod ",
March-August, 2005. On August 8, 2005 “\duties with the PEGASUS contract plg * «
were re-assigned.E{EENESSEﬂregjred from EPA after 35 years of seu(ice on January 3, 2006. bl (’[L/
On January 26, 2006, _contacted __ _CPOD Administrative LY :\D
Contracting Officer for the PEGASUS contract, and requested a meeting to discuss PEGASUSI e
‘subcontracts. _explainedim_%had been retained by PEGASUS as a consultant to b\b\“\
assist them in?ndgstanding goygrnment contracting and related procedures. In the meeting with c/
CPOD, same date, :iiscussed PEGASUS subcontracting issues which may have b\o\?
been previously acm?essed whilé __was an EPA contracting official. Following a discussion blg 1
among CPOD ofﬁcials,[l Jtold - that future participation would not b‘a() C
be allowed, pending an ethics evaluation. Potential criminal violations include 18 U.S.C. 207
(Restrictions on former officers, employees, and elected officials of the executive and legislative
branches).

SYNOPSIS: On February 10, 2006, the EPA computer formerly assigned to‘ S __}was U@, 7;,
seized. On March 9, 2006, - _Jas interviewed and related c-l:'ontacte r _on h(ol C.

January 6, 2006, to discuss ___ fntent to work for PEGASUS, and to inquire as to whether  was [of, )
violating rpg\st-employment restrictions applicable to former federal employees.‘______iexplain_é’a that 5[, hylas

b@; although| was involved in the solicitation' jwas not inyolved in the contract award or its ,
“¥.~subsequent administration. also told ‘hat PEGASUS contacteg_‘ durin ‘Q(p e

-

[

_retired from EPA. On January 11, 2006, —'rendere a written opinion in whick ‘-’"pined b{a Tl

~—f ’

October, 2005, concerning a potential jolg;‘upon which~ ¥old PEGASUS to contact after‘ bl <

Nmare s

did not participate “personally and substantially” in the award or administration of

‘The PEGASUS contract-and believed it would be legally permissible fori__ Jto work b(o -

for PEGASUS. On February 3, 2006, /kreceived the SOF, generated by CPOD, which bb g
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.. ~ — . ~ - bb /]
outlinec — 5 involvement with PEGASUS. related that although his /}
information was cause for further inquiry, the SOF alone were not sufficient to alter )plmon blﬁ
On March 22, 2006, _ . OGC, Cmcmnatl OH,
was interviewed. indicated Jice completed the Conflict of Interest Analysis,
Solicitation Review, and Competitive Range Determination on what became the PEGASUS
contract. stated). estructured the procurement on May 3, 2005, blp \/l (‘/

which led to a Small Business Set Aside (SBSA) with a single offeror, PEGASUS.
also related the procurement was a re-compgte, and the previous contractor was the University of
Cincinnati (UC). opined '\was personally and substantially involved in the e \/\
matter. Further investigative activity disclosed that although _ restructured thep ;
contract to a SBSA, _did so at the direction of " based upon a decision to change /\(’
the contract type ma‘d?hy__ CPOD Service Center Manager. On April 7, 2006
reviews o§~ e-mails revealed no _evidence of collusion between Sl “and b b, 1T
~1
_PEGASUS™On April 20, 2006, _.was interviewed, and related that although ™
represented PEGASUS as a consultant in order to clarify subcontracting i 1ssues b(o VI
made no attempt to influence the government during the January 26, 2006, meeting.
, stated _interaction with OGC Cincinnati was wholly consistent 0k, 1
w1thL_‘lC0ntract Specrahst duties at the time. On July 11, 2006~ b6, 7 O
was interviewed. - _related that during January 2006, Sloy FL
PEKASUS Vice President andUC staff member, held a retirement party for
t )personal resrdence __never observed _interact with £4 l C
“PEGASUS employees during on-site contractual act1v1ty On August 3, 2006, b (o A

was interviewed. © ssumediP b
duties during August 2005, and was tfié contract specrahst of record during the EGASUS -

contract award and subsequent administration” =777 tstated approached during /% i
_an August 2005 _meeting, at which commumcatet 10pg to eventually hire™ 7

— _ i Yelated after _Jassumed dJ]dutles on the PEGASUS (¢ .-
matter, —hontmued to be involved as an : advrsor to due to the proximity of their L & f »«
work spaces, ang_ relatlve seniority. "~ ~lindicated” |was present at the fls . s

J anuary 26, 2006, meeting at CPOD. L “could not g1ve a definite opinion as to whether B

(o " tried to influence the government during the meeting, but behevedL “mere Dl /&
Presence there was ill-advised. On August 21, 2006, the reporting agent coordinated this
investigation with Assistant United States Attorney (AUSA) ANNE L. PORTER. Per
coordination with AUSA PORTER, a Financial Crimes Enforcement Network (FinCEN) report
and an IG Subpoena were requested pursuant to discovering a potential violation of 18 U.S. C 208
(Acts affecting a personal financial interest), specifically to determine 1f : sed” -‘l ol
official position as an EPA employee to influence and/or advocate the comtract awardT‘
PEGASUS. Pursuit of an 18 U.S.C. 207 violation was discontinued based upon the
aforementloned discussion with AUSA PORTER. On October 6, 2006, a review of

eal property and other personal assets, as disclosed by an intelligence report bé.”

provided by FinCEN, revealed no indicators of possible kickback activity. With regard to .
PEGASUS,’ \lwas not listed as a capitol stock holder. On October 24, 2006 a foe
review of IG ‘subpoena materials dlsclosed‘_ 7was hired as a consultant by ({; /(-
PEGASUS, specifically on January 23, 2006. “Additional disclosures included the 3
existence of two personal service contracts between “hnd PEGASUS for supportof «. .-/
contract administration requirements. : - did not appear on a list provided by b,
PEGASUS which disclosed persons having a financial interest in the company. During
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¥
- November, 2006, an OI computer forensic report disclosed thatr -~ — . (viewed a document &' °
titled “PEGASUS FEE WK4" on 46 days during the period August 4, 2005, tféough January 2, “
2006. On December 11, 2006 __Was re-interviewed and could not provide a logical, o, / 2~ :
justifiable reason as to wh __would have viewed the document with such frequency bu I
after _ ‘duties regarding PEGASUS were transferred tor ’da 10
MARCH 28, 2007, CLOSING: On January 8, 2007 was re-interviewed &0 7C/

_pursuant to clarification on the document identified via a the computer Torensic report.

bl‘,ﬂc, “related the document was a CPOD Weighted Guidelines spreadsheet, derived
“rom Lotus Nofgs 1-2- 3, version 4, depicting approved cost information relating to PEGASUS and
EPA Request for Proposal Number CI-05-10314. “\tated the spreadsheet plp ¢
disclosed negotiated costs associated with what would become EPA contract EP-C-05- 056, "
awarded to PEGASUS on Sepwtember 15, 2005 elated the cost figures would bl(’ 7 v
have been useful to__ and/o1 Yas assigned contract specialists; however b\b ¢
there was no furthe lausible use for the document which would indicate fraud. b)‘, 7 o

/) (felated”  directed Lo reconcile task orders on other contracts unrelated to
PEGAéTJ S during the same perlod in question, and opined, may have used the b é’ 7
[

document as a template durin reconciliation activities. On January 1 47 2007 C b«)a )V
provided two documents, inc%—dlng an EPA Sources Sought Notice, posted January 11, 2005,
authored by and a sign-in sheet for a meeting titled RFP CI-05-10314 Meeting b b TC
Attendance, 'dated May 1247005 On February 12, 2007, and February 21, 2007, representatives

bl

from two of the contractors who participated in the May 12, 2005, meeting who did not place a

bid were identified and interviewed. During both interviews, the representatives indicated that

their respective companies did not submit a bid because they did not have the expertise to perform

on the requirements specified in the RFP. Additionally, both denied any influence was exerted on

them by _Yor anyone else, not to submit a bid. On March 20, 2007, interviews were ale .
conducted with both . - “stated, _ “wasthe EPA DG ’:«"‘
contracting officer on the preceding UC contract. Both interviews dfsaosed( Vb b, .

(gefused to somahze with in any manner to include allowing ~ to buy

a cup of coffee. advised ntacted” __Jdurmg late 2005, &3¢ / =
upon learning thaL : v‘was retlrmg from EPA, regarding a post retirement position bb i
with PEGASUS. Both “stated thatr _ _Tresponded by DG, f*;, N
/gelling __ that the conversatlon was mapproprlate . . related oG -

Jg_ontacted in mid-J anuary 2006, advising that
was interested in a potential job; however, prior to accepting any employment L_:_) h o L

bb {U'— would contact ethics officials at EPA. After receiving the aforemen’uoned

el

- become a consultant for PEGASUS. , a part owner in PEGASUS

approval to work with PEGASUS from _{an agreement was drafted for‘;h to b Csw Jrab
authored the proposal
for the EPA contract which ultimately resulted in the award of the contract. denied
contactin_g:_ " for advise or assistance on the proposal, and stated questions were
posed tc J When asked about the retirement party fo L _ which b @
hosted athresxdence explained the party was not just for _ but also for O
employee who had worked with UC over the years. ,
"explained that because  was unable to do anything for “or Lo
while they were employed by the EPA,~ wanted to show ppreciation postTetirement. S
denied receiving or asking for any favors fro “' (R
confirm explanation of the retirement party v and stated that when asked
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S L :}about having the party s -'felt there would be no problem since bé ‘ e
’ _ Was already retired. Regardmg the January 26, 2006, meeting at CPOD, bl , 7 &

i exp amed _wanted to clarify questions wrth regard to what type of contracting b (a RS
‘mechanism PEGASUS could use for their subcontracts. explamed in retrospect b éa 7
having the meeting w1th ““\was not the best use of Judgement however, ble,
emphasized that it was not' mtent to influence any type of contracting action but merel} to V& . 7 ¢
_Obtain clarification on what Was already written into the contract. Botk - and
- “\denied any inappropriate actions on the part of . " to influence the bk 7 &"
Contract award or influence subsequent contract actions. Jrelated Woartlcrpatron b, T
in the pre- solicitation actions ceased after the technical evaluation durmg approxrmately July,

2005 and all actions on the procurement were turned over to (: durmg August, 2005. bb 7C

— “agreed . :lationship with ™ _could be described as that of a mentor. b(a 7 &

‘was questioned about the aforementioned computer spreadsheet, and stated that” ] ki, ¢
recalled the spreadsheet was like one which CPOD used regularly for cost determinations.
could not recall accessmg the one for PEGASUS during this time, and opmed( ¥ bb,7C
,_would have had no reason to since Tlwas responsible for the contract with PEGASUS,
jagreed the explanation provrd) d by jdurmg a previous interview kG, e
1 Yy 7c
“Was plausibl€ in that[ maxhave used the spreadsheet as a template for completing paperwork on bé,

olp g other contracts howevél bould not understand the need for accessing it 46 times. jo -,

bb 7~ Baieienand {had no_ furthér explanation regarding this matter except to say there was no beneﬁt b& 7C,
T %o be gained erther by -“or on behalf of PEGASUS, to continually access this spreadsheet - b
since the contracting action was alr r,eady complete, and such access could in no way impact future 1 ch
contract matters with PEGASUS. thad no further relevant 1nformat10n to prov1de
and declined to provide a written statement. The allegations agamst “vere b e hl

DISPROVEN. Accordingly, this matter is closed.

”~ =
Approved:___ A (QC’ ' 7C_
Special Agent in Charge
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OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL
OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS

CLOSING STATUS REPORT
CASENUMBER:  07-0002 DATE: January 29, 2007
ASSN. NUMBER:  2007-0495 B OFFICE: Central-Chicago

CASE TITLE: o 1., AGENT:

ALLEGATIONS: This Preliminary Inquiry (PI) was initiated based upon information provided
to the Acting Inspector General and the Financial Fraud Directorate by DEBRA WONG YANG,
United States Attorney (USA), Central District of California, Los Angeles, CA. The allegatlon
was tha
Office of Criminal Enforcement, Forensics and Training (OCEFT), Office of Enforcement and
Compliance Assurance (OECA), Washington, D.C., received gratuities and things of value in
return for using official posmons and authority to further the personal gain of a Hollywood -
television producer B Tand” relatlonshlp with.

]may have facilitated law enforcement benefits, suchas a
personally led tour of the Federal Law Enforcement Trammg Center (FLETC) located in Glynco,

GA. This tour was provided to several of ‘production company staff and actors.
_This allegation was that the tour ma ay have{[een prov1de31 in exchange for _hiring -
Jat ollywood studio with a very hlgh starting salary o
T ‘. 3

SYNOPSIS: This is first Status Report for this case. Accordingly, there is no activity to include
in this section. .

JANUARY 29, 2007, CLOSING STATUS REPORT: Accordlng to FLETC personnel it is
not unusual for tours of the training center to be requested.{ Spec1al

Agent in Charge (SAC), EPA-OCEFT-CID, FLETC, advisédthat  sponsorec - anda o

3-person video film crew. The purpose of the tour was for general fact finding. The film crew
were doing a DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURIT_?Y type show and wanted to include
_EPA-CID in one of the episodes. WherL_asked it _ _mentioned anythlng to the effect of -

was arranging the tour in order foi___'sonto get a JOb stategl_1 “absolutely,
posmvely not”. stated tha can “make such a definitive response becaus _ would have -
_remembered a réquest made in that manner. Based upon the information p@owded by._

‘it appears the actions of izvere not a misuse of ‘office -

“and authority arid the tour was of minimal Value. NG further investigation 1S antlclpat“'d

Approved: /s/ Michael Loughnane
Director, Special Operations Directorate

This report is the property of the Office of investigations and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents may not be reproduced
without written permission. The report is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and its disclosure to unauthorized person is prohibited. Public
availability to be determined under 5 U.S.C. 552.
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL
OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS

QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT : DETAIL

Investigative Case File: 2007-CS 0001
IGOR -~ be

et

o

CLOSE

Subijects: —

“SYSTEMS SUPPORT ALTERNATIVES, INCORPORATED

Allegations:

This case was initiated on April 24, 2002, based on information referred by an anonymous complainant, regarding a
contract violation in the Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance (OECA), Administration and Resources
Management Support Staff (ARMSS) by The contractis | .
with SYSTEMS SUPPORT ALTERNATIVES, INCORPORATED (SSA) contract number: 5

Statutes:

Title 18 U.S.C. 287
Title 18 U.S.C. 1001
Title 18 U.S.C. 641
Title 18 U.S.C. 1341
Title 18 U.S.C. 371

Complaint:
No Complaint found.

SEPTEMBER 26, 2007, CLOSING: This case was initiated on April 24, 2002, based on information referred by an
anonymous complainant, regarding a contract violation in the Administration and Resources Management Support
Staff (ARMSS), Ofﬁce of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance (OECA), b Nalls

"' The contract was with SYSTEMS SUPPORT ALTERNATIVES INCORPORATED (SSA),
contract number: GS 35F 5930H. This contract was awarded via the General Services Administration supply-
schedule on September 23, 1998 and ended on September 22, 2004. The total contract amount awarded was
$747,249. This award for SSA was to provide Help Desk and User Support Services to OECA users.

—
The complaint stated that since March 2001, Kspent an enormous **
amount of time in closed door meetings with Allegedly, the Dehvery Order Project Officer (DOPO) of the -~
Information Management Team (IMT) was denied the opportunity to monitor the performance of the contract.

~  Tallowed SSA to write their own contract modification. It is further alleged, SSA performed training for
ARMSS personnel, but this is not part of the task duties listed in the contract. Potential criminal violations include
18 U.S.C. 1001 (False Statements), 18 U.S.C. 286 (Conspiracy), and 18 U.S.C. 287 (False Claims). This Lo
investigation is within EPA OIG jurisdiction because _ is an EPA employee and SSA had an EPA contract. ~ -

i

During the course of this investigation there were numerous interviews of ARMSS employees, including computer
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specialists, budget officers, program analysts and the Director of ARMSS. The results of these interviews
identified systematic weaknesses in the development, execution and management of this contract from the creation
of the statement work to subsequent modifications-however no criminal evidence related to false statements,
conspiracy, or false claims were identified.

Further, during the course of this investigation there were numerous interviews with Office of Acquisition
Management (OAM) staff including personnel responsible for OAM policies, the Contracting Officer (CO) and
supervisory staff in the service center in which this contract originated. Various OAM weaknesses were identified;
for example the Contract Officer (CO) incorporated SSA's proposal as part of a modification to provide "web
services" without following-up and delineating the specific tasks that were to be performed via the generation of a
statement of work. Additionally, the CO failed to include several contract clauses in a modification of SSA's
contract. As a result of this; OAM changed various policies to assure that the proper contract clauses were included
in future contracts, that OAM staff, as well project officer staff, receive the proper training in oversight and
administration of contracts and that the CO would be more timely in responding to future Project Officer (PO)
requests for clarification.

Allegedly, SSA had begun a new series of tasks which resulted in the hiring of additional staff before a formal
modification had been issued. According to OAM supervisory staff, SSA did not begin working or charging EPA
for any tasks until after the modification in question had been issued. The CO incorporated SSA's proposal into
the contract, thereby, according to OAM supervisory officials, authorizing SSA to work outside the original scope
and the PO approved invoices for services that were received by EPA.

During the course of this investigation, OI sought the assistance of OIG Audit staff in reviewing SSA billing
records in the form of employee time-sheets to determine if there were any improper billings. A review SSA's
billings under this contract, as well as a comparison with the various task order documentation identified that while
there were errors in SSA's billings, no fraud indicators were identified. The review subsequently did question
$28,636.59 in SSA billings under this contract because these billings were for a task order modification that might
have been beyond the scope of the contract. However EPA personnel incorporated the changes and approved
payment for services that were provided.

During the course of this investigation an OIG Subpoena, as well as other complex investigative techniques were
employed. Analysis of this information did not provide any evidence of criminal conduct.

On March 7, 2003,; was reassigned from Supervisory Program Analyst to Program Analyst. On June 11, L
2003, \vas reéassigned to the Office of Environmental Information, According to. supervisor, these b
actxons were taken because of the way in which, 'administered the SSA help desk contract and that _had f -
exceeded the scope oi 1uthor1ty b, 7y
On November 28, 2005, the Department of Justice declined criminal prosecution of this matter. On May 22, 2007,

the Department of Justice declined civil prosecution of this matter.

As mentioned earlier, no evidence was identified to indicate tha{r ‘financially benefited from the relationship 'j“ /
with SSA. Since, Tlis no longer in a position with this type o

juncture would be untifiely and provide nearly no investigative value given the criminal and civil declinations have
been obtained. Although the questioned amount of $28, 636.59 is unresolved,

low dollar amount, and, in comparison with the overall contracts' value, it is recommended that this investigation be
closed with no further work required. SSA has no current contracts with EPA

7

%
S

resp0n31b111ty, an interview of at this L2
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL
OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS

QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT

Investigative Case File: 2007—CS-0/016W

IGOR § bl
M ”) -

CLOSE

Subiects: - 42 T
e

Allegations: — / [

“EPA employee, had a conflict of interest betweer and EPA grantee, ‘ﬂ fle

“the NEETF, on EPA"Grant 830354-0. Addmonally obstructed a federal audit (Audit Report L .

2005-P-0027) relating to the grant.

Statutes:
Title 18 U.S.C. 208

Complaint:
No Complaint found.

August 31, 2007 CLOSING: This investigation was opened on February 7, 2006, as a result of information received from 7 E

OA, OIG, Dallas, TX Office. The referral alleged a possible conflict of interestand an %, -
obstruction of an audit by EPA employet |Office of the Administrator (OA). The conflict appeared to exist '« [
between; and an EPA grantee, the Nanonal Enviroriental Education and Training Foundation (NEETF), on EPA )
Grant 830354-0. According to e-mails, ‘was interviewed during the course of an audit, (Audit Report 2005-P-0027, -~ -
titled: EPA Managers Did Not Hold Supervisors and Project Officers Accountable for Grants Manaaement) and provided o
vague and evasive answers to the auditor's questions. It was also alleged that iwhile ), was v
also a

i

Interviews with members of the EPA grant review staff overseen by DIANE BAZZLE, Director, Office of Executive Services, :
OA, indicate Incorrectly monitored the original $50,000 EPA grant. The grant review staff advised Ol they had r’~ I
previously infoffhec tha relationship with the NEETF was, or had the appearance of, a conflict of inferest. Upon K e
being notifiec @nded frelationship to the NEETF. After OIG Report 2005-P-0027 was issued, was .. ‘ w
removed as PO on the NEE F grant. -

{provided information that received conflict of interest training '

“duyring riginal PO training on March 26, 2003, afid during subsequent trammg on Qecember 1, 2005. Ol reviewed two .
of: OGE Form 450's for 2004 and 2005 and identified no disclosure from! that received any form of Ealy
compensation from NEETF. Ol contacted CHARLES KENT, Director, Office of BUSIness and Community Innovation, OA,
and found no letter of recusal from actions involving the NEETF ir files.

ey

Status Report: Detail December 6, 2007 Page 1 )
This file contains information compiled for law enforcement purposes. It is subject to the provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974, as amended, 5 USC 552a, is the
property of the Office of Inspector General (OIG), and may not be disclosed without the prior permission of the OIG.



/
a — — S/

_As part of the periodic Grants Management Self Assgssment (GMSA) audit, interviews ofr vere conducted by __ o
Office of Audit (OA)Y. OIG. Phlladelphla Office; Program Integration BFanch (P1B), Office of” .
“Fuman Capital, OIG; and ».§ According to“ffT”'GMSA auditors, and their relevant audit work papers,; had significant grant é‘,
management weaknesses, missing fll documentation, followed improper procedures, and showed a continuing Tackof grapt understanding or .
candor during the audit interview process. Ol completed a review of QA's work papers that documented OA's dealings with and upon _¢,
which OA based its allegations of a conflict of interest between and NEETF. Ol found no evidence to support the allégation that‘

received compensation or any other item of value from NEETF durifig, __tenure as a PO on the NEETF grant in question. i Te T

Ol received and completed a review of computer files from {computers The files reviewed included the NEETF cooperative aareement ©°
with the EPA, correspondence with NEETF officials overseeing the cooperative agreement with the EPA, and documentation of; 002, 7+
2003 and 2004 Performance Plans. No evidence was identified that demonstrated tha. “had a financial relationship with NEETF 'Sr
engaged in activities to obstruct the OIG's audit. —

Records reviews, Interviews, and correspondence provided by current and former NEETF officers, including the current President, Director of . |
Administration, and the former Director of Marketing, indicated that oarﬂcnpated in several meetings of an advisory board of the NEETF e
GreenBiz Advisory Committee. These series of investigative steps indicafed that teceived nodirect compensatlon beyond some .
refreshments, light breakfasts, or lunches provided at annual meetings. No evidence Was identified that indicated that ?was ever a board ; s_
member for the NEETF. -

On July 13, 2007, Ol interviewed DIANA WOOQD, President, NEETF WQOD stated NEETF conducted an extensive search of its internal .
records and determined that all relevant records relating tc assocuatlon with NEETF have previously been provided to Ol, to include -
_minutes of meetmgs o fattended. The information provided by WOOD confirmed that NEETF never provided any form of compensation to ;.

=
l/

-

Also on July 13, 2007, Ol interviewed, \who siatec ‘was confident that ‘dvd not have a financial or
administrative relationship with the NEETF., further opined that affiough. Was upset with the Audit Repor’t findings, 'did not
believe that ihad obstructed the OIG audit. | stated some of the conclusions in the Audit Report were based on errofiéous ,F :
assumptions, adding that: recommended the gossibilitv of $3,000,000 in future EPA funding to the NEETF; not a single grant in the =
amount of $3,000,000, as “Claimed in the Audit Report. related tha' 'was held accountable for poor admmlstratlon of the: grant

inthaiTreceived an unsatisfactory rating in the relévant efement on moﬂeﬁormance Appraisal. [y'. = -
: "

et

On July 14, 2007, O} interviewed' who statec \never served In any capacity on the NEETF Board of Directors and had never received, -
compensation, or any thing of valiig, from the NEETF. stated ‘'was invited to, and attended, two or three meetings in 2004 and two 58
mestings in 2005 at the NEETF offices. i claimet eceived no compensation at these meetings, where items such as soda, ... ’
sandwiches, etc. were served. \denied any attempt 10 obstruct the EPA audit and stated that only tried to correct factual errors o
contained in the Audit Report. —~

"

This investigation demonstrated that there is no evidence that. benef ted from /relationship with the NEETF, in any material, non *
incidentai way. . association with NEETF was within the scope of. employment asa ‘and was counseled by EPA
management forthe appearance of a conflict of interest. During reviews ot ZPA Grant 8303540 filg; it was revealed that the f Ie lacked
documentation and suppaort for: actions most likely due to weaknesses and poor performance as the grant's PO. was
counseled concerning  ipoor PO méhagement and performanc&on th& NEETF grant. was placed on a Performance Improvement - -
Pian to addres: ‘Qg;rformance problems with grant adminigtration. Subsequently, received an unsatisfactory rating in the relevant - =,
critical element or,  'EPA Performance Appraisal in 2005. has since been removed as PO. There has been no identified financial loss - *
to EPA and according to Agency officials, the NEETF fuifilled it's grant obligations. No further investigation is warranted. The initial allegations
have been disproved. It is recommended this investigation be closed.
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL
OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS

CLOSING STATUS REPORT - October 06, 2008

Investigative Case File: 2007-CS-0017 X Lo
Investigative Title: [GOR. J Lo, -

g b
Agent: e
Office: "SOD - SIU/EI - Washington

Case Category: Employee Integrity
Date Opened: December 12, 2006

SUBJECTS: B
. B bl ¢
ALLEGATIONS: | o
The conflict of interest is a post-employment violation because{l is allegedly Ow: '™~
 representing EPA contractor in a matter before the Government in k&, 7¢
which, was involved, while )*was a Government employee. (o, 1
STATUES

Title 18 U.S.C 207 - Restrictions on former officers, employees, and elected officials of the
executive and legislative branches
Title 18 U.S.C. 208 - Personal financial interest

COMPLAINT:
No Complaint found.

SEPTEMBER 8, 2008 CL.OSING: This investigation was opened on March 17, 2006, and
converted to a case on April 17, 2006, based on a memorandum received from the Counsel to the
_Inspector General, Washington, DC. The referral alleged a possible conflict of interest involving

. -]former_ o bl ¢
o i | The
potential conflict concerned| _}epresentation of EPA contractor nie i
in a matter before the Government in
whxch was involved while a Government employee, in violation of 1ggst- ». ﬁ ‘ ,,,3 -
employment restrictions. In addition, information in a quote attributed to on le, 1

website, appeared to be prohibited under the Standards of Conduct, 5Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR), 2635.702(c).

Status Report November {2, 2008
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During the course of this investigation, Ol interviewed multiple EPA employees with knowledge

of “involvement with the : project, or of _ - __}mderstandmg of b(p i
: post-employment restrictions. These interviews 1nd1cated ' ‘was srgmﬁcantly involved & (. ”i <
in the project while employed with the EPA. = . project was one in which
EPA supervisors would be better able to retrieve information more easily from the databases _ , , -
EPA employed at that time. Additionally, these interviews mdlcated wrepresentec B be 1 &
new employer in at | least one meetmg — A
with the EPA and partlclpated m another. Interviews also revealed ‘beheved as ik =
acting properly in regards to__ bost—employment restrictions. It appears that L, b )

believed, as a result of a conversation with KENNETH WERNICK, former Semior Counsel and
Alternate Designated Agency Ethics Official, Ethics Office, Office of the General Counsel

(OGC), EPA, A thatt _ kG, 7e
participation at these meetings was proper "It should be noted that received a 1.5
million dollar contract to administer the ; project. o .

“iprevious employer, was subsequently hired by asa &b, <= }
subcontracior on the project. was employed by immediately prior o b (a( ¢
employment with EPA and immediately y after leaving EPA. - :
During the course of the investigation a review ofl ) ﬁemeuls was conducted. This b b —{;E:
review revealed a 06/15/2004 e-mail, frorn L ‘to an individual at with the email b G —

address of ~ ~ ~_titled "OAM . Phase One Requirements." This bl 1C
e-mail stated, "We are relying on a partnershlp between us, and Oracle to achieve this. I am

creating an initial SOW for the follow consulting(sic) on about this order of priority. I'm sending

you this as a 'head up.' I know it can take a couple of weeks to line up resources. My most

important(sic) immediate goal is to get someone from in to do an architectural review (figure

about 3 days, it's not complicated.) I would like to get that part done ASAP. If we need to

change the environment, I need to know before we can go any further. Here' s the general

_background for the SOW as a heads up." In an April 4, 2008, interview with {_ T bl 10
Headquarters, Procurement Operations Division (HPOD), OAM b(p 7l (-»
OARM 1200 Pennsylyania Avenue, Washington, D.C. 20460, stated o b |
\felt that~ Temailto  was improper for several reasons. , explamed that [l 7 -
the email appears to béa request for advisory service from the private sector % _fturther b T
explamed that this should have been issued by a Contracting Officer. | tated that if the .{, /&

contract in question had been competitively bid, every company should have received the same ~ _ .
emai] so that  'did not receive an unfair advantage Lastly_‘ explamed that at the very §t W,
1east\, ~ran the risk of an appearance issue, when __wrote the SOW for a contract Lis e
which was suﬁ'equently awarded to with orev1ous and subsequent e TR
employer, recelvmg the ma_]orlty of work. E ‘stated'ﬁ'ad —7been aware of these issues Mp ") C
regardmg h prev1ous employment with at the time the contract was ol ¢ _
awarded, onuld fiave preferred contacting an Agency ethics official so as to avoid putting the b@ | &
Agency at rlsk

s - } .
The investigation failed to reveal any evidenct steered the . project to l (" e
Additionally, during the investigation, Ol reviewed mulﬁa‘le documents detailing SICH e
relationship to and as well as documents obtained from[\ /_ﬁnancia'r oo o
Status Report November 12, 2008
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| ~
institutions. These reviews failed to revea received any payments or gratumes from b(P i -

or. for any official acts performed) while an EPA employee. bl

On August 14, 2008, OI received, via email, a letter from RONALD SHARPE, Assistant United

States Attorney, United States Attorney's Office, District of Columbia, Judiciary Center, 555 4th

Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20530, (202) 353-9460, in which SHARPE declined this Case for
possible prosecution. Previous conversations between OI and SHARPE revealed that although \
the investigation confirmed__ jthe allegations that _‘partlmpated in meetmgs . L&
between EPA and ', the inVestigation was unable to substantiate that, o, 7l
intended to influence, which is an element of Title 18 U.S.C. 207- Restrictions of former

officers, employees, and elected officials of the executive and 1eglslatxve branches. Addltlonally,

as stated above, the investigation failed to substantiate any financial gain by ‘whichis bl e
.an element of Title 18 U.S.C. 208- Acts affecting a personal financial interest. Lastly, although B
o Tladmitted in a January 30, 3008, interview, that,  orovided the quote which appeared 10& e
on website, prosecution was declined jBased bS

upon this dechnatlon no further investigation is merited. This Case i is closed.
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL
OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS

QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT

Investigative Case File: 2007-CS-0019

IGOR -~ AT
L /J ]
CLOSE
SUBJECTS: oy e
1ol 1C

— 3

ALLEGATIONS: -

That,_ ~lallegedly converted government property to. own use. l()(o . I _
That _ 7allegedly filed false claims relative tor jconducting personal business during é)(al /C
workmg hours .
That allegedly represented _ “as having the authority to initiate civil action on b@( 7(\:_
behaif of EPA.

STATUES:

Title 18 U.S.C. 287
Title 18 U.S.C. 641

COMPLAINT:
No Complaint found.

DECEMBER 19, 2007 CLOSING: A Preliminary Inquiry was opened on April 28, 2006, and
converted into a case on July 14, 2006, based on a referral received on April 27, 2006. This

referral referenced an anonymous letter sent to the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) ,
hotline dated March 1, 2006. This letter alleged that EPA employee, bt =

Dffice of Civil Rights (OCR), Office of the Administrator e A
(OA), Washington, DC, had utilized federal computers, telephones, and work time to prepare

extensive correspondence concerning »sition as a member of the ]

. ~ where _resides. bé. 1
Additionally, the complaint alleged that made a statement at a board of directors ol ?
meeting that, L . , and I will sue
you."
In October 2006, Ol conducted interviews with two members of the oth of whom
concurred that whxle dld often state that 7was a . never bl o
threatened to sue anyone as at oron behalf of EPA.
Status Report: Detail May 5, 2008
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T

ble
From June 2, 2006, untxl June 29, 2006, OI analyzec

account. The review disclosed that of :1 e ’6 (" 7&’
‘referenced the following;” i S N2 L
N and_ - R I
_ . , i “lrelated to__hosition on the « /-
. The investigation identified that the o inL_.J e,

account was de minimis.

This matter was declined criminal prosecution by the United States Attorney's Office,
Washington, D.C.

On March 23, 2007, OI interviewed and obtained a sworn statem t from! _, Consistent \3@ ) C
with Ol's ﬁndmgsh demed makmg the statement that, #vould initiate a lawsuitasa bl /7 O

. Given that the primary allegation has been disproved, it is recommended
that this matter be closed with no further work required.
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL
OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS

QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT : DETAIL

Investigative Case File: 2007-CS-0012
IGOR - HANSEN, BRIAN WADE (et.al)

CLOSE
Complaint:
. o B d -3
JUNE 21. 2007 CLOSING: This investigation was opened based on information provided bv l / ) j’ ’c
! -~ . /(/ <
~prov1ded OI with information related to alleged narcotics use o ;

“and distribution on EPA property by TT employee BRIAN HANSEN, Technician. This was a joint investigation
with the United States Drug ETforcement Agency (DEA) and the Edison, New Jersey Police Department Narcotics

Unit (Edison PD).

W.vyas interviewed by OI on June 15, 2005 and reiterated most of the information - L@ ;‘”’
prov1ded b advised on numerous occasions _ 'left the warehouse facility only fo return O -"'/;;‘ s
later to find all the doors locked. HANSEN allegedly placed large metal siens pear the doors to alert! hlréto people b
entering the warehouse unannounced. On at least two occasions, bserved HANSEN with 2 large

briefcase. Upon approach, HAN SEN slammed the briefcase shut and 1mmed1ately returned it back to his locker.

OI conducted surveillance of HANSEN on five separate occasions, of which only one yielded suspicious activity
by HANSEN. On February 2, 2006, HANSEN was interviewed by OI, DEA and several Edison PD detectives.
HANSEN provided OI with written consent to search his locker and its contents. In addition, HANSEN provided
OI with a signed, sworn, written statement describing the circumstances surrounding his storage and use of
narcotics at EPA Edison. HANSEN was found to be in possession of approximately 35 grams of narcotics,
including the contents found in his briefcase. HANSEN stated that the narcotics were for his personal use and
denied dealing narcotics at the EPA Edison.

On February 2, 2006,( \\was interviewed by OI and Edison PD /JC /(__
_detectives. _ Jadrmtted to "doing a line" with HANSEN before noticing OI's arrival in the building. £ ¢ 7 ‘:.
- lstated that this was the first and only time :ver "did 2 bump” or "did a line." },/. ~ .

OI contacted EPA contracting officjals on February 3, 2006, to advise them of the circumstances surrounding
HANSEN and. él

On February 17, 2006, OI was advised that Assistant United States Attorney (AUSA) BRAD HARSCH, Criminal
Division, District was assigned to the HANSEN matter. On March 17, 2006, an arrest warrant was issued for
HANSEN.

-

On May 19, 2006, JULIE DAVIDSON, Assistant Prosecutor, Middlesex County, advised that they did not have
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e I . . kilo | i
_any jurisdiction in the matter. On July 5, 2006, AUSA HARSCH declined prosecution on the Ko 7
— . . - ,:' i -~ "
matter indicating the S b’_)ﬁ ¢, J

On July 12, 2006, HANSEN was arrested by the U.S. Marshal Service and charged with violating 21 U.S.C.
Sections 841(a) (1) and (b) (1)(C) (Possession with intent to distribute cocaine). On August 10, 2006, HANSEN
pled guilty to a one count Information, charging him with violating 21 U.S.C. 844 (Penalty for Simple Possession).
On September 15, 2006, HANSEN's employment with TT was terminated. On November 20, 2006, HANSEN was
sentenced in United States District Court, District of New Jersey, before United States Magistrate Judge CLAIRE
C. CECCHI. HANSEN was sentenced to 12 months probation without a judgment of conviction first being
entered.

On February 23, 2007, EPA's Suspension and Debarment Division (S&D) declined to pursue an action relative to

HANSEN. DAN BARROS, Debarment Counsel, U.S. EPA, Office of Grants and Debarment, S&D, advised that

the regulations require that for a person to be debarred, that person must be a principal (manager, officer, etc.) or

participant (solicits work, submits bids, etc.) in an entity that is trying to obtain Government grants and/or

contracts. HANSEN was a technician and does not fall intg these categories. On June 14, 2007, BARROS

declined to pursue S&D action relative te__ jfor the same reasons cited in the HANSEN declination.

On March 23, 2007, a Report of Investigation was sent to EPA on the knatter. On April b(\‘, ne

19, 2007,5 employment with TT was terminated bl ,"7 - - Y
—

This investigation proved the allegation that HANSEN was using and storing narcotics at the EPA Edison facility

and that the narcotics were also used by, another TT employee, while at the facility. The kG .

investigation did not yield any evidence that HANSEN ‘was distributing narcotics to any other EPA personnel or %36 1S

contractor personnel at EPA Edison. No further investigation is warranted. This investigation is closed.

v
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL
OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS

QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT : DETAIL

Investigative Case File: 2007-CS-0026 N
IGOR - b 72N G

CLOSE

SUBJECTS:

ALLEGATIONS:
This case is being opened to determine if abuses occurred relating to the EPA federal
_credentialing process; and, in particular, how the credentials were issued to and used by

L

STATUES:

Title 18 U.S.C. 1017
Title 18 U.S.C. 1001
Title 18 U.S.C. 701
Title 18 U.S.C. 506
Title 18 U.S.C. 912

COMPLAINT:
No Complaint found.

October 1,2007 Update: During this reporting period, several attempts to obtain mformatlon o
from _family and friends met with negative results. No additional sl -
1nformat10n was developed to address the questlon of how _ \\may have used
the federal credentials in the 23-months between resxgnatlon from NYSDEC (April 2004) and b
the retrieval of the federal credentials (March 2006) This information will be relayed to AUSA
_LORD during the next reporting period to see if she is interested in obtaining informationon
_ _‘pestwlde application activity during those 23-months to determine - ,
whether “1sed the federal credentials to influence that activity. Ol previously leamed that after -
resigning s from NYSDEC, ‘}began doing business as e
To (Tate OI has not uncovered any information that

had used the federal credentials to advance this business. If AUSA LORD is not interested in
pursuing this matter further, then OI will request a declination and close this case based on that
opinion.
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DECEMBER 19, 2007 CLOSING: This case was opened on August 18, 2006, based upon
discussions between the Special Agent in Charge (SAC), Northeastern Resource Center and the
Assistant [nspector General for Investigations (AIGI) regarding a recently closed proactive
investigation concerning EPA federal credentials issued to state employees under the Federal
Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA) (Assignment No. 2006-1214). On or about
July 7, 2006, the AIGI and the SAC determined that OI would open an investigation that would
address potential criminal activity previously identified in the earlier proactive investigation.

e,

OI obtained information from _ _\New York State Department of + °
Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC), Environmental Conservation Police Investigator.
-advised OI that an unidentified person turned in a wallet found at a rest stop along the .

New York State Thruway. The wallet was found to consist of a black leather case marked as
USEPA with the EPA seal, a small silver NYSDEC Pesticide Inspector badgeﬂ,(attached to case)
and USEPA Inspector's - issued to and signed by_ I a2 -

Other items found in the credential case included a New York State .- .
Driver License and a NYSDEC Employee Identification card, both bearing

~ “hame and picture. OI determined that \credentlals A
were issued in Februafy 2004. » “had started a pestlclde apphcatlon busmess EC @
after resigning from ssition with NYSDEC on Aprll 14,2004, pomted out that + - :
the New York State drivers license found in the credential case was not issued t until December )
17,2004, approximately eight months after Aremgned from! _ \NYSDEC blo, 72

position.

Six interviews were conducted with NYSDEC employees that included__
former supervisor and co-workers. Attempts to obtain information on how _

may have used the federal credentials met with negative results. A review of NYS Better

=

_Business Bureau website revealed no negative reports associated with _ r C L
business ChoicePoint/Autotrack reports obtained on December »‘? =l
19, 2006, also revealed no significant findings relating to either, _ 1 plo
On December 21, 2006 __Wwas interviewed and”  reiterated clalms that i\r »»
swas never 1ssued the federal credentials durmg _last term of employment with1 NYSDEC, = e
- further stated”_still stands by the response ~ provided to NYSDEC N
dated November 11,2004 and comments made to . on Apr11 28,2006, ki

OlI presented this case to SARA LORD, Assistant U.S. Attorney (AUSA), Department of Justice,
Northern District of New York, who initially expressed interest in providing prosecutorial
support in this matter. AUSA LORD requested OI to obtain details regarding
B rhealth insurance card and replacement drivers license both of which met
“with inconclusive findings. AUSA LORD did not believe it was necessary to obtain any records

from __ former employer. On April 5, 2007, AUSA LORD expressed /.
concern with the ability to show a criminal violation thhw /retentlon or ;|
wrongful use of the federal credentials. ‘
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Several attempts to obtain information from famlly and friends met with °
negative results. No addmonal information Was developed to addréss the question of how _

! ‘may have used the federal credentials in the 23-months between L

“resignation from NYSDEC (April 2004) and the retrieval of the federal credentials (March

2006). OI has not uncovered any information that' had used the federal

credentials to advance’  business, Lo

DECEMBER 12, 2007 CLOSING: On November 28, 2007, AUSA SARA.LORD, Northern
District of New York was advised of the facts and circumstances of this investigation. AUSA
LORD was informed that no additional information was developed as to how

~ ay have used the federal credentials. On that same day, AUSA LORD f
“gave Ol a verbal declination in this matter.

On December 7, the silver NYSDEC Pesticide Inspector Badge and the NYSDEC Employee

Identification Card in the name of zwere returned to NYSDEC. On .:.
December 12, 2007, after consultation with the EPA program office that issued the federal
pesticide credentials, the one 7 issued to »obtamed during the .

course of the 1nvest1gat10n was destroyed. No further investigative efforts are required for this
matter. This case is closed.
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL
OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS

QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT : DETAIL

Investigative Case File: 2007-CS-0031

P
[t

IGOR - , L e
CLOSE
SUBJECTS: -
H '1(&‘! "g C

ALLEGATIONS: .
[t has been alleged that oncealed assets while filing for Chapter 11 bankruptcy to avoid (»3 C (+¢
a $4 million civil judgment to the EPA.
STATUES:
Title 18 U.S.C. 152
Title 18 U.S.C. 157
Title 18.U.S.C. 1509
COMPLAINT:
No Complaint found.
October 1, 2007 Update: During this reporting period, Ol learned from ' s ’;}C

), Assistant Regional Counset, e

_ " that her re51gnat10n from EPA has been
delayed. . . ontinues to serve as a special prosecutor LG te
supporting this case. As previously reported, under a March 29, 2007 ruling by the Court,
7as ordered to surrender to have  competency to stand trail evaluated. 3((.
advised OI that had not complied with the Court order until June 8, 2007. ‘"’

The evaluation was expected to last for 90-days, which should have been concluded on or about

However, as of September 13, 2007, nformed OI that there has L)Qt f’(

been no change in the status of this matter and no additional decisions have been issued by the
Court. Ol anticipates this issue to be resolved during the next reporting period.

This case was opened or ' . based upon a referral from the Financial Fraud

. /7
Directorate who received information from ] b (’4 /e
Department of Justice (DOJ), ' >. The referral involves a $4 million b t RS
civil judgment to the EPA against who,on  ‘aly, +C
~allegedly concealed assets while filing for Chapter 11 bankruptcy This 03(4 \ ¢
Status Report: Detail January 9, 2008
Page |
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investigation is within EPA OIG jurisdiction since it involves allegations of fraud relating to
financial obligations in the form of cost recovery for a Comprehensive Environmental EC&; I

Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA) cleanup and Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act (RCRA) violations.

On April 19, OI met with representatives of the DOJ, including ) W, q ¢
Environment and Natural Resources Division, Environmental Enforcement Section,

Washington, D.C., of the Office of the US Trustee. At this h(olq C

meeting, Ol learned that o: , filed for bankruptcy. On ’ n o ol ¥C

the civil trial commenced in United States v.,_ ___-company owned and operated by B e Ty

This matter focused on recovering environmental response costs under CERCLA and penalties
for violations under RCRA. The Court found in favor of the EPA, awarding a judgement of
$4.26M against Wbt

According to bank record began liquidating a securities account valued at $1.5M. By BC’( 7¢

o ~, this same account was valued at less than $10,000. Under the bankruptcy
requirements, ’ . was required to submit appropriate schedules concerning assets or b,
statements of financial affairs within 15 days of filing. failed to comply with this bé. 3¢
requirement. Both schedules submitted U failed to disclose the security account bf 7€
originally valued at $1.5M. falsely signed, under oath, the schedules submitted on both L& ¢

) ) , after failing to appear at a Hearing of bl 4 ¢
Creditors, the Bankruptcy Court issued an Order of Apprehension for . On ' e %_C

- was apprehended and ©  later appeared at a Hearing of Creditors to meet ol 1 ¢

obligations before the Bankruptcy Court vas held in custody until , b, T
whe- obligations were satisfied with the Court.

Ol learned that L::(A e

.. had been assigned as a Special
Prosecutor for the U.S. Attorney's Office in had been part of the team {7 ¢
that brought the civil case against- andk_‘ 5 0 14
On . , an indictment and an arrest warrant had been issued fc ~ charging - G e

with 18 U.S.C. 152(1) concealment of assets; 18 U.S.C. 152 (3) providing false statements
in submissions to the Bankruptcy Court; and, 18 U.S.C. 152 (7) fraudulently transferring
property ‘ was arrested on , and, during an Initial Appearance, the Court b(ﬂ ;4 C
ordere.. ... :0 be held pending trial. On ., Ol testified at a Detention Hearing for
. The Magistrate hearing the matter denied the motion and ordered * to be returned |5, €

to custody. On after a second Detention Hearit _ was released from 56,2 C
custody after meeting the conditions of the presiding Magistrate. A status conference with L(h 3¢
Defense Counsel was scheduled for .

OI learned that on field a Civil Tort and Bivens Claims with a request b(//q C
to stay the Bankruptcy proceedings, which was later dismissed by the Court.

. . Ac
informed OI that on the Court made a preliminary ruling U‘f )r,
supporting the court appointed mental health care providers who found - Ttobe o . ic
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mcompetent to stand trial. Under this ruling was ordered to surrender have (‘Q(f" Fe

competency evaluated. advised OI that had not complied with the Court b(«? P
order until ) - The evaluation was expected to last for 90-days, which shouldhave  [,(, 7¢C
been concluded on or about . However, as of - llo 1 C

informed OI that there has been no change in the status of this matter and no L( (7
additional decisions had been issued by the Court. AR
DECEMBER 19, 2007 CLOSING: During this reporting period, OI learned from b e
that she was notified by the District Court on . - ,astothe G, 7 ¢
findings of competency evaluation. rinformed Ol that the preliminary "
findings that “was incompetent to stand trial were upheld. As a result, on ("C' Els

filed a Motion to Dismiss this matter without prejudice, which was accepted  Luler 7 €
by the Court on With the dismissal of this case, no further investigative bc,, ¢

efforts are required for this matter. This case is closed.
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OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL
OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS

CLOSING STATUS REPORT
CASE NUMBER: 05-2006 DATE: October 26, 2006
ASSN. NUMBER: 2005-0473 . OFFICE: Nonheastem-Washington
CASE TITLE: AGENT B : N

__ CASE CAT.: Program Integrrty
‘L CASE TYPE: Credit Card Misuse

ALLEGATIONS: This investigation was opened on December 17, 2004, based on a referral
from the Financial Fraud Directorate (FFD). The referral indicated that e
Office of Site Remediation Enforcement Office of Enforcement -
“and Compliance Assurance (OECA), provided FFD with information regarding a potential fraud
Involving ~EPA purchase card. stated received a call from a merchant,
L \FARO COMMUNICATIONS INC. (FARO), Gardena, CA, who
stated L received a telephonic purchase order for office supplies using EPA
purchase card number. stated 'did not make the purchase order and the :
transaction was cancelled. FFD spoke with' ¥who confirmed __story.
h:eported the attempted purchase was for approx1mately $20, 000 and was ordered m
By a man 1dent1fy1ng himself as” T e
o tused a prepaid cell phone to make the order, and may have attempted to make
addrtlonal'fjurchases using other government agency purchase card numbers, including GSA and
the US Department of Education (ED). A multi- -agency task force was convened in order to
examine the possible relationship between the use of £ purchase card number and - ~
other attempted purchases using additional government purchase card numbers. This case is
within EPA’s jurisdiction because attempted fraud using EPA purchase cards is an EPA program
integrity matter. Possible violations include Title 18 U.S.C. 1029 (Fraud in connection with
access devices).

SYNOPSIS: In September 2004, T ) Ereported a k “ <
claiming to be an ED employee narriedk Msed’ ”;government o
credit card number to fraudulently order $7,811 in printer ‘toner drums and cartridges from ,
LAZER CARTRIDGE PLUS (LAZER), Walla Walla, WA, via the telephone. _ e

stated the credit card” " was using belonged to colleague 5’ '
‘ ‘ notrced thé fraudulent toner purchases while at work reviewing mcomlng faxes As . -
soon as dlscovered the unauthorized purchases,’’ contacted BANK OF AMERICA,

superv1sors the ED-Office of Inspector General (OIG) Hotlme and GSA-OIG.

This report is the property of the Office of Investigations and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents may not be reproduced without written
permission. The report is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and its disclosure to unauthorized person is prohibited. Public availability to be
determined under 5 U.S.C. 552.
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Case No. 05-2006 October 26, 2006

FEDERAL EXPRESS records showed that six boxes were delivered to an apartment in New
Carrollton, MD, and an individual named w51gned for the package(s) relating to ~ =
the LAZER purchase. '

In November 2004, PEACE CORPS (PC) OIG (PC-OIG), notified ED-OIG, a man cla1m1ng to

be with PC, used the government credit card for the real a - o
PC employee, to fraudulently order $15,150 in toner drums and cartridges from ACCESS ~
PRODUCTS (ACCESS), Colorado Springs, CO. The contact telephone number given for the
ACCESS purchase matched the one given for the above-mentioned LAZER purchase. The
shipping address for the ACCESS purchase was in Capital Heights, MD. The contact number
given for the attempted fraudulent purchase was the same telephone number used <+
to make the LAZER and ACCESS fraudulent orders ol

e

Ol determined that _ ) _.jis an apartment complex. Ol further cie b
determined that FARO initially kept a voice message 1eft by’ durmg the [/
attempted use of the _archase card. However, when OI went to collect the tape
recording, it was determined that ‘answermg rnachme had not been updated and !

the message left by ‘had béen deleted. |

On March 2, 2005, an informal task force meeting was held to discuss future investigative
actions. That meeting, attended by Special Agents (SA) from EPA-OIG, ED-OIG, GSA-OIG,
PC-OIG, US Department of Justice (DOJ) - OIG, and US Housing and Urban Development
(HUD)-OIG, concluded that the chief suspect in the fraudulent use of government purchase cards

in this case was 7Accord1ng to ED-OIG, in 1998, __was Wi 7T

investigated by agents from the US Department of Transportation (DOT) for using unauthorized
government credit cards to purchase printer toner cartridges. During DOT’s investigation,

ttorney and DOJ attempted to reach a plea agreement. However,
was incarcerated in Virginia at that time for similar charges and DOJ ultimately declined
prosecution in the DOT case. _was chosen as the primary subject by the task force -
due to the similar nature of the fraudulent govemment credit card purchases of prmter toner
cartridges. A decision was made during this meeting to conduct surveillance on
and VACANT PROPERTY SECURITY (VPS), Washington, D.C. The VPS address had been
identified as a location where individuals had previously used the VPS telephone number for
fraudulent office supply orders using government credit cards.

-

The task force identified and interviewed numerous other potential victims from various federal

agencies. [nvestigation concluded that - _.was not connected to the DC metropolitan e
area at the relevant times, and no evidence was discovered that connectedg__‘ to this .
case. Thus,. _'was no longer considered the chief suspect. {. . -

_A review of Maryland Department of Labor payroll information revealed .
__iwas an employee of VPS. Resultant from a fraud bulletin posted by GSA-OIG, it
Was further revealed thai _ _was the subj ect of an investigation by _ -
for fraudulent toner purchases and that” /__'Ieft employment with
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Case No. 05-2006 October 26, 2006

ey ey, {
- B 1%

lin November 2004. At Jses
7 was the federal sales representatwe andA _managed the followmg federal -
“accounts: EPA, ED, PC, DOJ, HUD, Department of Health and Human Services, Department of
Energy, Department of Labor, Department of Agriculture, Bureau of Engraving and Printing, the
Federal Circuit Court, the Federal Reserve Board, and the US Food Service. In addition,

investigation confirmed : nad direct access to government credit card information "
for T
On April 5, 2005, the task force caused a Criminal Complaint charging ;With one B

count of conspiracy to defraud the United States to be filed in the US District Court, District of .. .
Maryland, Greenbelt, MD. Subsequently, an arrest and search warrant relativetc ...
and were issued. OI participated in the search at ‘was not at thus, |

the arrest warrant was not executed. On April 27, 2005, GSA-OIG and ED-OIG SA’s arrested

» i at a homeless shelter in Glen Burnie, MD. On May 27, 2005, the complaint

E;;gainst; '_ \Iwas dismissed. The prosecutor decided to seek an indictment against .
- " inlied of proceeding on the complaint. ! -

The task force discovered that thad been a suspect in an earlier unsuccessful US L
SECRET SERVICE (USSS) investigation mvolvmg the fraudulent use of government credit

cards and office supplies. Task force members 1nterv1ewed witnesses previously identified by

the USSS during their unsuccessful investigation on o (m order to ascertain if any = -
fraudulent purchases were made on their respective government credit cards. Ol interviewed
witnesses from the NAVAL RESEARCH LABORATORY, NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF
STANDARDS AND TECHNOLOGY, and the NAVAL SURFACE WARFARE DIVISION, all .
located within the DC area. No significant information agamstw Awas revealed. L

_On August 12, 2005, GSA-OIG and ED-OIG jointly applied for and received search warrants for o
"IYAHOO and CABLESPEED accounts in order to obtain incriminating evidence :

“in furtherance of an indictment against g No useful information was obtained from .
CABLESPEED or YAHOO.

The joint investigation disclosed the attempted loss of government funds resulting from the
fraudulent credit charges was $170,742.12, the actual loss was $54,298.60 and the total
government loss was $25,549.24. The difference between the actual loss and the government
loss was the loss suffered by the financial institutions.

During the course of this investigation, other investigative techniques were utilized.
On June 13, 2006, ED-OIG informed OI the joint investigation has been declined for prosecution

by HOLLIS WEISMAN, Assistant United States Attorney (AUSA), United States Attorney's
Office, Greenbelt, MD.

OCTOBER 26, 2006 CLOSING: On July 5, 2006, ED-OIG provided OI a copy of the o
declination from AUSA WEISMAN who stated in the declination letter e
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Case No. 05-2006 October 26, 2006

Thls Lo
investigation involved an attempted $20,000 fraudulent telephonlc purchase of toner cartridges
using an EPA purchase card. The attempted purchase was thwarted by the merchant who
telephonically contacted the EPA employee, to whom the EPA purchase card was assigned, for
charge verification. Consequently, the charge was halted and EPA suffered no financial loss.
While the integrity of the EPA purchase card program was compromised, the evidence to support
a criminal conviction could not be obtained. The investigation revealed numerous federal
agencies were either victims or targets of fraudulent government purchase card toner purchases.
The outcome of this joint investigation was that although the allegation of an attempted purchase
card theft was substantiated, sufficient evidence to support an indictment could not be obtained.
All investigative steps in this case have been completed, this case is closed.

Approved:_/s/_ o e
Acting Spec1al Agent in Charge
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OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL
OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS

CLOSING STATUS REPORT

‘DATE: December 20, 2006l

CASENUMBER:  05-3005 OFFICE: entral-Ch_i_\cago la 50
ASSN.NUMBER:  2005-1495 —, AGENT:
CASE TITLE: CASE CAT.: Program lntegrlty

b iy CASE TYPE: Wire Fraud
2

ALLEGATIONS: This investigation was opened on October 12, 2005, based on the results of a

Prel%mmary Inquiry. Ina memorandum received from jlt was alleged ‘o
that|_ . . Tare dlistr@utlng and selling - {4 |
unregistered pestlcldes in the State of California. J“lalms thal both  and. Zhstrlbute e

and sell their products throughout the states and are currently under mvestlgattonbl')y the State of
California Department of Pesticide Registration (CDPR). The CDPR has concluded its
investigation and has forwarded their findings to the CDPR legal office for enforcement action.
The findings indicate that, _ did in fact use a false EPA registration number on the products bL{'
which they were dxstrtbutmg which will have an adverse 1mpact on program integrity. This |
investigation is within EPA OIG’s jurisdiction becausg | 'is using false EPA Registration &
numbers to distribute unregistered products. Potential criminal violations include: 18 U.S. C

1001 (False Statements) and 18 U.S.C. 1341/1343 (Mail/Wire Fraud).

SYNOPSIS: The reporting agent received and reviewed the report from the CDPR which has also
been forwarded to the CDPR’s Legal Office for enforcement action, and to EPA Region 9. This
report corroborated the fact that a product identified as . ub sanitizer was b
usingar - a owever, this number was registered | Lto 2
' " “and is in no way connected witt__~ Further, this number was &
cancelled on October 10, 1989, due to non payment of a maintenance fee concerning the@IO- by
:")roduct Also being distributed and sold by __ was a carton of individual packets of b i{
and an EPA .
establishment numbe1 ' Contact was made with_ E B loL/
B _EPA Office of Regulatory Enforcement, Toxics and Pesticides Enforcement Division .
(TPED) concerning the reg}_stratlon numbers and Est. No. to confirm that these numbers are not

bL\ registere to\_ stated that the _ does not exist within the EPA
7 ,
o _lreported that EPA registration numbe: is registered to . ! [/)L{
" Tlocated in New Jersey. A check o )webs1te no longer lists the products in question for sale. bg’

This report is the property of the Office of Investigations and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents may not be reproduced
without written permission. The report is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and its disclosure to unauthorized persons is prohibited. Public
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Case No. 05-3005 December 20, 2006

0
A Dunn & Bradstreet (D&B) report concerning __ was obtained, which showed that the company LD“’

was started in 1985, and currently employs approx1mately 50 people. An inspection report

 _Wasreviewed. There eport shows that  {used expired, and/or false EPA registration numbers A“-
on some their products. was contacted to schedule an E,Lf
mterv1ew date. ’advised that  would liketo have and & b, e
:‘companv attorney present for the interview. _\ the attorney représenting k> (, VAS
contacted the reporting agent and stated that a t‘h'trd party contractor was responsible for
prov1d {ng the registration and establishment numbers, and the design of the label and packagmg )
for the roducts in question. _ptated that ., would arrange a meeting with b, 7(:‘,,
ofﬁcers s Tt was still needed after a review of records which _]Was going to provfde L 7
_ «-jadwsed thatb “vas in the process of obtaining company documents and recotds as

_prepared on October 25, 2005 by the EPA Rjglon 9, Pesticide Enforcement Branch, concemmg

— &
-well as a report, which would substantiate this claim. . ’_‘another ;
Attorney, provided copies of e-mails which indicate that the reglstratlon numbers and

~—
establishsment number in question were provided to by . N 104

r‘the company who supplied the products to,__ __‘dea t w1t \ (0({

_ e was contacted and the owner, ‘advised thatw h L, 'c

’ “ldid provide the EPA reglstratxon numbers and estabhshment
‘number to' ‘for the products in question on January 14, 2003. . "did state that[ wasin A é I
the hospital d_urmg the time frame in question and, “Ihandled this transaction. b b, /(
Upon leaving the hospital, ]reallzed what had happened and advised, | :i bi, 7/
that;  could not use any of the numbers in question on products being distributed b) | — {Q

s

¢ L Iso advised that; } }s no longer with the company and i 1sL_ A ')C
ro ’

The investigation has not revealed evidence of false EPA registration numbers being

used by|” ": L)(/J’.?L/

/s

DECEMBER 20, 2006: On October 19, 2005, . hwas interviewed again and he v
advised that hever had their own EPA reglstratlon number. ]i —hsed the EPA registratio o ‘4
and EST number of their supplier \{ which was valid for a product 42
unrelated to .}:ontacted‘ B coruld7 ‘
not recall whgte ']got the EPA registration numbers or L -fnumber which wa used on_h L é@
products. L stated it may have been from the supplier, off the packaging or_ _ may have gotten 4 O 7(
it over the phone This investigation did not produce results within the Jurlsdlctlon ofthe
EPA/OIG per the Memorandum of Understanding between EPA/OIG and EPA/CID. Further, this
matter has been briefed to the EPA/CID on August 17,2005, for whatever actlon if any, they
deem necessary. Also, the will not seek adwmlmstratlve action agamst ,Tlgf et
already issued fines to__ Jcllents for using the products which displayed n non | reglstratlon [QL}
numbers. On December 19, 2006, Suspension and Debarment was briefed concernmg this
investigation and declined action in this matter. ;

Approved 7

SpecialAgent in Charge —— ' “—
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OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL
OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS

CLOSING STATUS REPORT

CASE NUMBER:  05-12002 DATE: February 21, 2007

ASSN. NUMBER:  2005-0449 OFFICE: Western-Los Angeles .
CASE TITLE: AGENT: " b6,
&“ L CASE CAT.: Program Integrity

CASE TYPE: False Statements

ALLEGATIONS: This investigation was initiated on December 10, 2004, based on a referral
from Headquarters (HQ), Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Office of Inspector General
_LOIG) Washington, D.C. The referral contained allegations forwarded from Special Agent (SA)

" stating that ~ had allegedly provided false L4
asbestos training certificates to individuals who perform asbestos abatement activities under the
auspices of the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act. This case is currently a joint
investigation with EPA CID. This investigation is within EPA OIG’s jurisdiction because
fraudulent activity could ultimately undermine Agency programs. Potential criminal violations
include 18 U.S.C. § 1001.

SYNOPSIS: A review of investigative activity conducted by EPA CID disclosed that on July 1,

2003wl Nc -of the  stated  reviewed three V.T? \f
training certificates from -and had suspicions they may have been altered. On July 23, 2003,
T' ‘admltted to paying $900 for an asbestos training certificate /O G, 18
i allegedly from On July 24,2003, _ “admxtted to paymg d* <
$1000 for an asbestos training certlﬁcate allegedly from i b# and ol "1 &

[

clalmed to have purchased the certificates from an unknown individual located in

lF"ortland Oregon and not directly frornL L

—

hed) ~ -

. California Division of
Occupatlonal Satety and Health ( (DOSH), Asbestos Consultant and Trainer Approval Unit,
vere interviewed in order to obtain information concerning thClI‘ ‘
regulatory oversight and to collect historical information related to and - ( b(’/ &
“stated that EPA regulations require that training prov1ders of accredited asbestos

{ k/Lffalining courses maintain all required records for-a minimum of three years. The information to

be maintained includes a list of students names, test scores of the provided courses, instructor ,
name, and possibly the sign-in sheet. EPA’s last inspection of occurred in 1999 or 2000, b L}'
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where a number of deficiencies were noted and a Notice of Noncompliance was issued. | 70 bL )
stated as of 2001, has not followed the appropriate DOSH requirements. DOSH’s records.

showed there was no indication that had issued certificates, submitted names of trainees, or [9 /
paid roster fees for any course since December 2001. Also,  has not paid their annual fees or [/
provided course materials to DOSH for review and approval. . ™ explained that workers u‘
engaged in asbestos related work must attend a four day initial course and an eight hour refresher

course annually.

- - Tt '-] - . - -

b o jEPA oIgG, interviewec, o Aé( &

— - " . . . . . . - InG
b(oi stated that is not a certified trainer and cannot perform training or issue Oregon State 0?’
7)1 “CertifiCates of training. can provide certified training and issue certificates of training in the §)

b,
C

state of California. Information was also obtained from the Oregon DEQ identifying additional
individuals who allegedly obtained training from

B __met with AUSA BRENT TABACCHI, Criminal Division, Santa
Ana California, to re-examiné the case. This investigation has been re-assigned to AUSA
TABACCHI and he expressed interest in this matter if it could be established that is b
providing individuals with asbestos work certifications without proper training.

— ~ —

J

An EPA Inspector General (1G) subpoena was served on Employment Development Department
(EDD) for quarterly wage reports in order to identify additional witnesses who may @ ‘5/

corroborate submission of fraudulent asbestos training certificates. EDD conducted an
“employer inquiry” for quarterly wage reports and stated that was inactive. {x
P, T
=i, __ linterviewed|_ Oregon DEQ; Portland,
¢ Oregor rovided recent copies of AHERA Asbestos Abatement Worker P
Cemﬁcates Effortsto interview one of the alleged suppliers of bLﬁ”)\_'_

the fraudulent certificates, were unsuccessful.

. T
An EPA 1IG subpoena was served on requesting records that included student applications 0O L{
and attendance, administered tests, individual student test scores, sign-in sheets, records of all
graduates and their certificate of attendance, and names of instructors who conducted the
AHERA Asbestos Abatement Worker 32-hour course. One box of records was produced in
response to the subpoena. The subpoenaed records were used to determine whether students

receiving an asbestos abatement certificate completed all training course requirements.

Because this matter was determined not to be a designated tier three case, this case was re-
opened per the direction of HQ EPA OIG.
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!

Analysis of third party documents in response to the EPA IG subpoena served on resumed. ()T

No evidence was developed to corroborate allegations that orovided false asbestos training b 4%
certificates.

FEBRUARY 21, 2007, CLOSING: Due to the closure of the EPA OIG Los Angeles field

office in late December 2006, and limited EPA OIG jurisdiction, this investigation is being -

referred back to|__ Reporting agent coordinated with both AUSA TABACCHI and ¢
and advised them of EPA OIG’s decision to close this investigation. No further Ll ;¢

mvestlgatlve work is warranted. This investigation is closed.

~ — -
Approved: _ LG e
Spemal Agent in Charge
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OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL
OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS

CLOSING STATUS REPORT

CASE NUMBER:  2006-8003 DATE: February 15, 2007
ASSN. NUMBER: 2006-0815 OFFICE: ‘Western-Denver |
CASE TITLE: ENVIRONMENTAL AGENT:

EDUCATION CASE CAT.: Program Integrrty

FOUNDATION CASE TYPE: False Statement
724 E. Iris Drive -
Gilbert, Arizona

ALLEGATIONS: This investigation was opened on February 17, 2006, in response to a
referral from the Financial Fraud Directorate regarding misuse of the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) logo and inaccurate representations by ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION
FOUNDATION (EEF), Gilbert, Arizona. The referral indicated that EEF advertises on an
internet website using the official EPA logo and represents that EEF is acting on behalf of, or is
endorsed by, the EPA. The website also represents that EEF’s training classes use EPA endorsed
Indoor Air Quality (IAQ) software. In March 2004, EEF was awarded EPA Purchase Order (PO)
Number 4W-2121-NANX to develop a program to promote IAQ management techniques. The
contract ended in August 2005, and EEF was given an unsatisfactory rating because of poor
performance and failure to deliver the required products. This investigation is within the
jurisdiction of the EPA Office of Inspector General because it involves fraudulent assertions of
product endorsement and the unauthorized use of the EPA logo by EEF. Potential criminal
violations include 18 U.S.C. 1017 (Government Seals Wrongfully Used and Instruments
Wrongfully Sealed), 18 U.S.C.701 (Unauthorized Use of Official Badges, Identification Cards,
Other Insignia), and 18 U.S.C. 1001 (False Statements).

- P
1o
}os

SYNOPSIS - . Economrst Indoor Environments ol 5‘“’”‘
Division, EPA, Washmgton D.C., was s interviewed. - stated in March 2004, EEF was *. -

awarded EPA PO Number 4W-2121-NANX, in the amount of $49,984. _was the «.
Project Officer for the PO. According to‘;_\ Jthe principal performance requirements of i
the contract were to (1) work cooperatively with insurance and financial risk management

entities to develop a program to train their building clients on IAQ management techniques,

using EPA’s - BEAM program as a technical basis, (2) pilot test a draft training module

developed by EPA and provide detailed suggestions for improvement, and (3) provide comments
solicited from a variety of building interests on preliminary draft guidance that EPA had

developed and a program that would encourage acceptance in the building community.

J B - .‘ fexplained thatwjénded up providing EEF with more assistance in fulfilling the PO
Vo _f/Thar ~ ad anticipated. EEF seemed to be using the contract with EPA to publicly enhance their

e
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credibility in the IAQ community and gain additional clients, rather than implement and deliver
the trammg and other activities called for under the contract. EPA repeatedly admonished EEF

for going beyond the statement of work in their outreach activities. | {considered many © v

of the statements made by EEF to be misleading. EEF did not satlsfaglorlly meet all of the
performance requirements and received an unsatisfactory rating from __ EEF was paid <
$43,678 because of their wog_lg effort, but the remaining balance was not paid due to their .
unsatisfactory performance. asked EEF to remove all references to the EPA contract f@d .

_from their public sohc1tat10ns and not 1mply EPA endorsement of their program in any way.

\related has been contacted by the heads of many IAQ organizations, such as the
" "Air & Waste Management Association, inquiring about the legitimacy of EEF. A check of the
Dun & Bradstreet Records Database did reveal an executive board associated with EEF. No
public filings were found for EEF. A check of the Central Contractor Reglstra’uon Database did
not disclose any other contracts assocmted with EEF.

- -

_. rovided the following: 1) the names and telephone numbers of the heads of the
IAQ orgamzatlons that have contacted him with regard to EEF; 2) the names, organizations, and
telephone numbers of any insurance and financial risk management entities that EEF may have-
contacted in order for EEF to provide training to them on management of IAQ using EPA’s I-
BEAM guidelines (per the statement of work set forth in the EPA Purchase Order), if known; and
3) the comments solicited by EEF from any building interests on the preliminary draft guidance
that EPA had developed and a program that would encourage acceptance in the building
community.

Assistant United States Attorney (AUSA) PETER SEXTON, Phoenix, Arizona, was briefed on
this investigation. AUSA SEXTON stated it did not appear EEF was misrepresenting themselves
to possible clients by telling them they had secured a contract with the EPA as they had secured a
contract and attempted to fulfill that contract in accordance with the statement of work. AUSA -
SEXTON deferred this case to EPA’s legal department.

Assistant Inspector General for Investigations (AIGI) STEPHEN NESBITT related this
investigation would be better served by having an attorney from EPA’s Office of General
Counsel (OGC) draft and serve a Cease & Desist (C&D) letter on EEF, directing them to refrain
from using the EPA logo on their web site and to further remove the inferences on their web site
that EPA supports their organization or recommends them in any way.

On August 10, 2006, a written and oral overview of this investigation was provided to

Trademark Division, OGC, EPA, Washington, D.C. On
October 3, 2006, g issued a C&D letter to EEF with a 30-day suspense. To .
date, EEF has not complied with the C&D Letter and phone messages left for EEF’s Executive
Director remain unreturned. Attorney ! is currently working with the Federal Trade
Commission (FTC) in an attempt to force EEF to refrain from using the EPA logo on their web
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site and remove the inferences on their web site that EPA supports their organization or
recommends them in any way.

FEBRUARY 15, 2007, CLOSING: On February 15, 2007, coordination was effected with

who stated  was contacted by a newspaper reporter from Phoenix, ¢ -
Arizona, pertaining to EEF and possible misrepresentations on EEF’s part to present and
potential clients. Attorney stated zleased a copy of the C&D Letter to the reporter -
but informed the reporter that since the investigation was still on-going, no further information
could be provided.

Since all logical leads have been pursued and the allegations against EEF have been proven, no
further investigative work is warranted. ] will continue to work with the FTC
to remedy the situation with EEF. This case is closed. ‘
Fatny o Do
Approved: _ <
Special Agent in Charge
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